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CHAIR PONTANILLA: " . (gavel) . . , Good evening ... everyone from West
guess we do have some people from Central Maui and East Maui here tonight.

I

... My name is Joe Pontanilla, I'm the Budget and Finance Committee Chainnan, for
this Committee. And tonight it is our pleasure to be here to ... gather public testimony in
regards to the Mayor's 2009 Fiscal Year Budget.

ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2009 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUl (C.c. No. 08-55)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time, I would like to call your Member from the West Maui to
introduce the Members ofthe Committee that are here this evening. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Whoa, I'm on a short leash .. . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
SPEAKER FROM

AUDIENCE: ... (inaudible). ..
to

me

a

AUDIENCE: .. , (applause and cheers) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: In attendance this evening, I, I will start on my left, your
right. We have a Member from Molokai, Mr. Danny Mateo.
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Our Upcountry Member, Ms. Gladys Baisa.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and, Joe, I always get you mixed up. Is it Kahului?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Budget Chair.

Kahului, not Kahalui ... (laughter) . .. Joe Pontanilla our

AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And from heavenly Hana, we have Mr. Bill Medeiros.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER
JOHNSON:
Councilmember Mike Victorino.

From

the

Wailuku

District,

we

have

AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Kim Willenbrink .

And from Staff, we have Ms ... Camille Sakamoto and

. . . (applause) . ..

''''''.UAAH we, it is
Mayor's proposed
Budget
Fiscal
to ... note some
rules. For those
you that have cell phones with you tonight,
you could
it on the silent mode
or. .. tum it off, as not to intemlpt the person that is testifying before us. When you come
up to testify, if you can provide us your name and the organization that you represent this
evening, you'll be given three minutes to provide public testimony, with one minute to
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conclude. After three minute, you will be notified that three minute has gone by and if
you can conclude in one minute, your Committee would appreciate that.
NOTE:

Silence.

like to introduce

PONTANILLA: ... So at this time,
testifier we have tonight is Adele Rugg.

AUDIENCE: .. . {cheers, applause, and laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . {laughter} . ..

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. RUGG: Wow! .. .{inaudible} ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Click it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Towards you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Towards you, yeah.
MS. RUGG: ... Hello? It's on .

... Good
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MS. RUGG: This is wonderfuL Whew!
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... My name is Adele Rugg. I'm the President of the Board of the Maui Choral Arts
Association. And first, let me thank each of you for the thankless job you do for us--the
long hours, the sleepless nights. Please know that it does not go unnoticed--even when
watching TV at 1 o'clock in the morning watching you live. That was a live, yes
... (laughter). . .
the Mayor's Budget,
the Department of Housing and
Concerns, on Page 10-24, the Maui Choral Arts Association has received our first-ever
line item of 25,000 dollars. We are so grateful. .. we are very grateful to be included in
the Mayor's Budget. And I'm here this evening just to ask you to keep this line item in
the Budget. The Maui Choral Arts Association was founded in 2003 by a small group of
people who love the art of singing. And for the last four years, the 50-member Maui
Choral Arts Association has held at least four performances per year throughout Maui.
At each concert, we had over 400 or more patrons in the audience. We have had concerts
in our churches ... and even at the Castle Theater, which of course always ... there's
always a fee involved. For the last three years, we have led the ever-popular holiday
seasonal Sing It Yourself Messiah. We have asked our talented local musicians to play
music with us. We have been able to bring over members of the Honolulu Symphony.
And we, and .. . (inaudible) . .. those are musicians on-island, we do community outreach
to our local schools. We have reached out to the schools in Kihei, Central Maui, and
Up country. And we have a waiting list of schools who would like to have our choir and
music ... musicians visit them. Just a few weeks ago, the Maui Choral Arts Association
hosted the world-renown Hawaii Youth Opera Chorus, the Kawaihao Hou Church Choir,
and the ... (inaudible) . .. String Quartet from the Honolulu Symphony. They were all at
the Makawao Union Church. You may have seen the pictures in The Maui News of these
organizations as they toured Maui for the weekend. And on Sunday, April 6th at
2 o'clock p.m., we are having our second annual Opera Rocks concert at the Maui Arts
and Cultural Center. I would like to invite each of you, your staff, and the guests in the
audience to attend this concert. It would be outstanding. I just happen to have some
over 600
at our Opera Rocks pe]~tolrm:mce.

MS. RUGG: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for your testimony.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any question for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... Adele-MS. RUGG: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --how many members for your society?
MS. RUGG:
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty members?
MS. RUGG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And they come from all over Maui?
MS. RUGG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Very good.
MS. RUGG: And they practice once a week.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Once a week?
MS. RUGG: Yes.
VICTORINO: Are there--

MS. RUGG: --we have tryouts.
ALL: .. . {laughter} . ..
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. RUGG: Thank you.
CHAIR
Thank you, Adele. Members, any more ..
Seeing none, again, thank you for testifying this evening.
MS. RUGG: You're welcome. Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Peggy?

next testifier is Peg Robertson, followed by AIda St.

MS. ROBERTSON: ... Hi, I'm Peggy Robertson. I live over here in Wahikuli and .. .I like to
come every year and remind about my Wahikuli Beach Park. I'm not gonna do that
tonight. It hasn't changed. It still has no grass and no sprinklers and everything, but, I, I
think that it's about time since it looks so nice on this side of the street but not on that
side of the street. Anyway, I noticed in your Budget for West Maui that there are some
things here. And it looks like Lahaina Aquatic Center heating replacement pool is going
to be fixed after four years. That's what it says. Don't let 'em take that out of the
Budget. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . (laughter) . ..
MS. ROBERTSON: Just hands off This is, this is a line item thing and we need that to go with
the tent that we put on there that was gone for four years before. Urn ...we're still, I
would also like to discuss our eroding sea wall. Rumor has it that Public Works had the
funds when Arakawa was Mayor. So maybe they still? We can look into that idea of
Public Works. I hope everyone here
looking at takes a walk on the sidewalk

Makawao or someplace else.
some
course,
funerals at sea. But
some people like just having memorial--like my husband's mother had a beautiful bronze
plaque in this little nursing home that when we went all the way to South Africa we could
go see the, grandma'S plaque. And, and my husband could, you know, remember his
mother and the children could--and, and I just think there's got to be something over here
for people because it's coming. You know? There are more and more people getting
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older on this side. And I think that it would be a nice thing for everyone to start thinking
in that direction to give us something over here. All right, that's all for tonight. Thanks
... (inaudible). ..
. . . (applause) . ..

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Peggy.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Questions for the testifier?
... Seeing none, again, thank you for testifying this evening. AIda St. James, followed
by Jim St. James.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. ST. JAMES: ... Hi, I'm AIda St. James. I'm the Executive Director of Keiki Kokua. And
I really thank you for letting me testify here tonight. We serve foster, adopted, kinship,
legal guardianship, families, grandparents raising grandchildren, and former foster youth
who have transitioned out of the foster care system. Annually in Hawaii in any given
day, we have 2,100 youth in foster care. In Maui annually, we have about 300 foster and
adopted families, and over 500 kids .. .in foster care. Now what we provide is social
support, practical assistance, and outreach. I want to explain to you tonight why our
services are so vital to Maui community. Recently, the Center for Disease Control did a
study called "The Effects of Childhood Stress Across the Lifespan". This study defines
toxic stress as any maltreatment that a child suffers over a long period of time. All of
our foster children who
abuse or neglect

news IS
can
Having
one
can make
difference. So supporting our foster parents, we
these children a fighting chance. The situation is critical Maui. There are less and less
foster parents being recruited and about 25 percent who become foster parents leave the
system within one year. So we must support the foster families that we have. They are
the ones that provide a safe, caring, loving ... (inaudible). .. homes that child victims of
toxic stress need in order to ... (inaudible) . .. foster parents and children, Keiki Kokua
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also helps prevent homelessness '" {inaudible}. .. foster youth by providing free
consultation services, social events, and educational opportunity through our scholarship
funds. Tonight, we have Art Cavanaugh here from Lahaina who has instituted our
scholarship fund for Keiki Kokua.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. ST. JAMES: ... {inaudible} . ..

Cavanaugh.

AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MS. ST. JAMES: The things I described to you that we do as foster and adopted parents really
do make the critical difference in a child's life. I'd also like to recognize every foster
parent ... {inaudible} . .. Well, thank you very much for your support. Any help you can
give us is greatly appreciated.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the testifier this
evening? Member Baisa? AIda, if you can ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a quick question. What is your budget request for?
MS. ST. JAMES: Thirty-five thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And will this be your second year of that request?
MS. ST. JAMES: No, we've had not-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:

anew

new

care

MS. ST. JAMES: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MS. ST. JAMES: --we also work with grandparents raising grandchildren. And some cases,
they are not assigned by the courts. The families agree to do this privately.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And does the courts or the State provide any funding
to your organization for this foster care?
MS. ST. JAMES: Our funding is not through

State, currently.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, and your request is

35,000 from the County?

MS. ST. JAMES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo.
MS. ST. JAMES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more questions?
Seeing none, thank you very much. I'd just like to make a note for those that are
testifying. Once you complete your test. .. testimony, please don't rush and go sit down.
If you could stay up maybe a few, few seconds because some of the Members may have
some questions. So, thank you. So the next testifier is Jim St. James, followed by
Bill and Maria Weber.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MR. ST. JAMES: Thank you. Mine's less than three minutes. So ... Jim St. James. I'm here
for Keiki Kokua. Between 1991 and 2001, I worked as a child and family therapist on
Molokai,
an adoptive parent, and
been a un..',"U~J~U
I

money
seriously consider
now ... requesting.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. St. James. Members-MR. ST. JAMES: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: --any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I got one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

on. Bill?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahal0 for your testimony. What ages ... do you ... does
the children that come to foster care, what ages are there?
MR. ST. JAMES: From birth to 18.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And ... about. .. how many annually do you provide
these services for?
MR. ST. JAMES: We provide direct services to foster parents ... and their children under their
care.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
MR. ST. JAMES: So they rotate, there, well, the typical stay in foster care is possibly three
months. The older ones, general, generally will stay longer term.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mahalo for your testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Again,
thank you for testifying this evening.

AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
ST. JAMES: .. . (laughter). ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Okay,
Maria Weber. .. followed by May Fujiwara.
NOTE:

the

next

testifier

IS

Bill

and

Pause while Mr. and Mrs. Weber approached the podium.

MS. WEBER: '" Good evening, everyone. Thank you for coming
the way over to West
Maui. My name is Maria Weber, and I come here .. . (laughter) . .. to testify as President
of the WMHA or West Maui Health Alliance. We opened up our after-hours on
January the 14th last year. And I'm very happy to report that since then we have seen
over 2,500 people
after-hours. And I have come here tonight not to ask you for any
money, but to thank you for the money that you gave us last year. You gave us 300,000
dollars to, which we have not touched yet. We, we will start using that in, in March.
Also as you may know, we got also a 300,000 dollar money, a State grant from the
Legislature. And Representative Angus McKelvey is also trying to get some extra money
for us so that we can upgrade a little bit of what we're doing. We have been so
successful that we are opened every day of the week, every afternoon and evening of the
week except Saturdays. And we're trying to get doctors. It's difficult to get doctors and
help. Our big problem is pharmacy. And as you know, Longs pharmacy shuts here at
5 0' clock in the evening. And after that, if you come to a new doctor or to see us and you
need Vicodin or something, you have to drive over to the other side. I .. .I'm very
pleased with what happened. And... again, I would like to thank you very, very much for
what you did--not for me but for all of the people behind me. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
--Mrs.

AUDIENCE: ., . (laughter) . ..

- 13 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2008

MR. WEBER: I shook my head. Anyway, so I went on my own and I contacted the lntrawest
Company, you know the lntrawest Company which is known as Maui Beach Resort
Limited Partnership is building a big timeshare ... tower on the ... on North Beach here on
the west side. Think about that as you may, but they are very nice people and very
helpful. And this morning I received from them a check for 1,151 dollars and 19 cents to
purchase the ham radio. So we don't have to go through you for this ... and I will order
that immediately tomorrow. What does that have to do with West Maui Health Alliance
you may ask? Well, we... the Health Alliance had to step forward because it had to be
channeled through a nonprofit organization. So that's what we did. There is one, and
this basically is to cover ham radio communications on the west side when I'm out of
town, which unfortunately will happen a lot between now and the end of the Olympic
games. And we are in the process of training a second ham radio operator and get him
certified by the Federal Communications Commission. He will be in charge of that radio
and have it available. We don't know yet where we will put it up. It may be on top of
the new tower of Intrawest, which would be an ideal location--except, of course, in case
of a tsunami, which we hope ... (laughter) . .. will not wash away the new timeshare. So
again, thank you very much for your help because it really prompted me to pursue this in
spite ofthe fact that the, the County monies ended up not being available. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Weber.
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just to let you know-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
sure one

us

wanna

come
Seniors-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA:

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --for providing us all this ... bentos
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AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much .
. . . (inaudible) . ..

CHAIR

PONTANILLA:
... (laughter). . . Okay, May Fujiwara, followed by
Yamafuji ... June Kaaihue, Solomon Pali, and George Fujiwara--all in that order.

MS. FUJIWARA: ... Good evening, Budget Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Council.
Welcome to Lahaina. My name is May Fujiwara. I'm a member of the MEO Board,
Legislative Chair for PMCC Council, consisting of over 40 senior organizations. And I
am also President of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens Club. Thank you, all, for your
past support. And we look forward to a continued support for programs that affect our
seniors and our young people. Our senior popUlation is growing . .. as evidenced by the
increase in membership of our senior organizations. Transportation is one of our major
concerns. Funding for transportation facility is needed. MEO Transportation adds much
to our quality of life by providing us the means to get to the doctor, go shopping,
et cetera. We ask for additional funding for transportation to take the increased number
of clients to the dialysis centers for their treatment. MEO truly lives up to their motto of
helping people, changing lives. So please support the following programs. The Infant
and Toddler Center which provides quality, licensed, affordable childcare; the Headstart
program that prepares children for school; Youth Bank which provides ... (inaudible) . ..
to young people and keeps them away from negative influences; Enlace Hispano program
that ... (inaudible) . .. growing Hispanic community integrate into our community;
Microenterprise program that helps lower income entrepreneurs get started in business.
Please also support the West Maui Improvement Foundation's request for a much,

MS. WlLLENBRINK: Three minutes.
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MS. FUJIWARA: --environment, and property ... (inaudible) . .. have the adequate manpower
and equipment. Specifically, they would like to have three additional Battalion Chiefs,
funding for the annual physicals ... (inaudible). .. funding for office and warehouse
Station, and several other things.
space. Also .. .let's see ... pumper for the
. . . Lastly, we help, we ask you to help
doing whatever you can ... to provide our
young working people with affordable housing. So many of the firemen have come to
me and asked me, you know, when are we gonna get affordable housing so we can also
live on this side and work on this side. We have, so many have ... so many families have
three generations living in one house. So what you can do is, you know, would be greatly
appreciated. Thank you for allowing me to speak.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, May.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you very much. Anita?
MS. YAMAFUJI: ... Aloha. Thank you for coming.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aloha.
MS. YAMAFUJI: My name is Anita Yamafuji.
another one of those active, involved
you
your support
member of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens. I want to
to

cars ... on
Popoe
or
emergency vehicle can get to
house because of those cars and trucks are parked on the, both side of the streets. Could
something be done to have parked, car parks ... on only one side of the street?
you
for your attention.
UU<UULUU"''''
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CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Johnson?

Thank you, Anita.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Anita, what you can do is you can call my office and
that way they will
there's a
that you ... (end o/tape, start IB) . .. sign
consider limiting parking on one side.
MS. Y AMAFUJI: Okay. All right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, thank you.
MS. YAMAFUJI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --testifier, June Kaaihue.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Kaaihue approached the podium.

MS. KAAIHUE: ... Aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Welcome.

taking care
.. also
I also have a 2-year-old
Headstart at Hale Makama Wailuku.
. . He loves school.
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... And he can talk a lot.
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
MS. KAAIHUE:
also, the Boys and Girls Club, the kids,
moopunas are ...have been
going there for. . .I think three, three, five years because they really take the kids
8 ... 8-years-old. And ... the ...
. . . facility has moved temporarily to ... Malu-ulu-o-lele Park on Front Street. Mahalo for
putting aside the money to remodel the older facility. Mahalo also for keeping the idea of
our hospital for West Maui, for, for the West Maui Clinic alive and making it become a
reality. The affordable housing's still on, an issue. And .. .I thank you very much for
being, keeping it alive. Thank you again for being here tonight. Mahalo nui loa.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, June.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .,. {applause} . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, thank you, again.
MS. KAAIHUE: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER

Aloha.

as
... (inaudible). .. I
Transportation makes it possible
me to
MEO bus, I can visit
friends who are living Hale Makua
the island.
to
Wailuku .. . {inaudible} . .. can go on .. . {inaudible} . .. excursion to other parts of the
island. I enjoy going to Hana... for the Taro Fiesta [sic] every year. Without the MEO
buses, I would be confined at home or only be able to go places close by and have to be
very careful that my battery doesn't die out before I can get back home. Like me, many

- 18 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

March 27, 2008

of our senior citizens depend on the MEO buses. So please continue to fund MEO
Transportation .. .(inaudible) . .. and .. . (inaudible) . .. activities at the West Maui Senior
Center where I go ... two or three times a week. So please support this program. Mahalo
for listening.
PONTANILLA:

you, Mr. Pali. Members, any questions--

AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you, again. George Fujiwara?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Fujiwara approached the podium.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... To be followed by Sylvia Lapinal [sic} as, and Phyllis Ross.
MR. FUJIWARA: ... Aloha ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aloha.
MR. FUJIWARA: ... Council Members and Administration. Uh .. .I'm George Fujiwara,
lifelong residents of West Maui and a member of the Lahaina-Honolua Senior Citizens
Club. And ...
I wanna tell you folks we are
it

we're seniors.
wanna show our ~nl,.rp,r,l
us a
everybody the County and
and Kaunoa
people
So we don't have enough time, sometimes, so give us a break.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
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MR. FUnWARA: But anyway... yeah... thank, thank you for your past support of the MEO
programs and the Kaunoa senior citizen ... programs and the hard work that you do for
the residents of our County. Please continue to support these programs. MEO bus
drivers need a raise, so give MEO more money so you, so ...more, more money if you
can, yeah, so you know they stay on the job. Because every time you get new drivers,
hard for us, too, yeah, you know gotta wait around you know for one hour ride around the
bus find some people ... the ... you know, the people if they not the right place and get
all kind of complications. MEO Transportation is important to all of us, young and old
alike. Bus drivers take us wherever. .. wherever we, we need to go, us old folks to doctor
appointments, shopping, meetings, and so forth; and the young people to their after
school activities. Many of our seniors go for their dialysis treatment and the MEO
buses ... on the MEO buses. There are more people who need to use these buses to go for
their treatment, so please fund .. .increase their funding for these buses. Yeah?
... Where the rest of my sidewalk on the Shaw Street?
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. FUnWARA: Several years ago I asked for a sidewalk on the Shaw Street-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. FUJIWARA: --so school children can walk safely to, to the park, to their P .E. classes and
not have to weave between parked cars to get to the park. But, well ... you, you put part
of the sidewalk there, but not where it. . .it's most needed--which is the front of the
also between Wainee and
highway .
Salvation Army. .
a little ... past

.. I,
speak
Department. .
the ... Budget review process and Member Johnson ... asked that
particular question that you just asked us. So, Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, George, actually, the contract has been awarded. We
have one paving company on Maui. They are waiting for the State Department of
Transportation to design the intersection so that we'll all be integrated. They're working
with the church on the one end and then also the Salvation Army on the other end. But
money is there. It's actually... budgeted. It was an '08 item. So it's being done, but
because we only have this one company and because we can't hurry along the State
.. .(laughter). .. Department of Transportation with regard to that intersection
intersects with Honoapiilani Highway--that is why it's taking a long time.
MR. FUJIWARA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But we don't have, we're doing the best we can, but you
know, you, you just need to get Brennon Morioka and some of these other guys, light a
little fire.
MR. FUJIWARA: Yeah, all right. Thank you very much. Mahalo.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, George.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, George. Any more questions-AUDIENCE: .. , (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
again. Sylvia

"'-'UIJU"'U

one

cars was

name
they
no, I can dance,
I can't speak
of crowds. But I said
try. I am a
caregiver of my husband who
is a retired fireman, who goes to Adult Care three to four times a week. When I first
went to check out the Adult Care Center in Lahaina, I took a peek and left thinking I
can't do this to my husband ... they're all much older than he is. But after months of
being a caregiver, I was burnt out and I would cry every night as I took a shower to
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release my stress. And when I finally decided to take my husband to the Adult Care, he
refused to go. But now he begs me to go there every day. The nurses there are so nice.
You know, they come out and welcome him. They help me up to the Center.
They... usually doesn't sing or dance, but he does now.
AUDIENCE: .. .{laughter} . ..
MS. ROSS:
just loves it there. I would like to ask you for your continued support of the
Maui Adult Care Center in keeping the cost down so that I can afford to bring him every
day. And thank you for your kind and generous assistance to the program--because Maui
sure all of us will be
Adult Care Center is a vital part of the long-term care. And
there one ...
. . . Oh, and I also like to mention that my husband is a retired fireman as Bill ...was once
a fireman. And we have some firemen in the back there also. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause). ..
MS. LAPIANA: ... {inaudible}. . . good ... {inaudible}. . . you gotta stand on the side of me
.. . {laughter}. .. Okay, thank you. Good evening, Members of the Maui County
Council. I'm Sylvia Lapiana, speaking on behalf of the Maui Adult Day Care Center
where I work as a program specialist. And I am also speaking on behalf of MEO
Transportation. I was also caregiver for my mom who attended Maui Adult Day Care
Centers in Lahaina before she passed away more than one month ago. We would like to
thank you for all the support you have provided Maui Adult Day Care Centers. As you
are aware, Maui Adult Day Center--let me put on my glasses--um... to help the poor,
elderly individuals at home for a longer period of time, preventing premature admission
to a nursing
We provide more service to clients
their families by providing
\;;Hl.U,!;;" at

.HUlin.',!;; someone to
I was
to
Lahaina Maui
Day Care Center. I took
mom.
first refused, but I took her all the same. I said to myself, oh, at last one
day
for
myself. I went shopping. And then she, and then not even one hour they called and she
said she's feeling sick, so she, and then I took her home. All happy on .. .{inaudible} . ..
oh, she only make believe. So then 1. .. continue taking her to the Day Care Center. I
was offered fulltime job. Of course, I sing, dance for ... the hula for 30 years, so it counts
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because we also have karaoke and I teach them the hula and they really enjoy it. So it's
good mental, physical exercise for them and for us caregivers. Mom enjoyed it. She
colored so well. She did crafts and when she came, when it came to karaoke, oh ... sing
up and all dance up 'cause she's a dancer. She was a dancer, she was a singer. So taking
her to the Day Care Center took a whole lot off our backs. We sisters worked more,
So the kupunas, they took care of us ... and they still do.
didn't have to worry about
And so we going take good care of them. So we also have the youth division from
the ... from Lahainaluna. They also do community service. And so thanks to them. The
kupunas, they have a great
with them. And, and they, too ... {inaudible} . .. So ...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. LAPIANA: Urn ... this ... okay ... {laughter} . .. wow ... {laughter} . .. So ...with this in
mind, we are asking to please support the funding for the Maui Adult Day Care Centers.
With the help of the County we are able to, they are able to keep the cost to the clients
and their families affordable and provide quality care. I would also like to thank the
County of Maui and MEO Transportation for all they do to support our elderly and
disabled in the community. Thanks to MEO Transportation for the professional way they
accommodate our clients with limited capacities. MEO Transportation provides a safe,
efficient, and dependable transportation system in our community. Please make sure that
we continue this excellent service. Thank you all for your kind and generousness to
Maui Adult Day Care Centers and to MEO Transportation. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-AUDIENCE: ... {applause} . ..

I

to ask

many

MS. LAPIANA: Okay, in Lahaina, we have about. .. maximum 15 people.
we have more than 50. And in Wailuku, we have about 50 ofthem.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wow! Do the majority of them use the MEO Trans or do many
of them get taken there by someone else?
MS. LAPIANA:
have their families take them, but most of 'em, they, the MEO
Transportation really works well, so they do have
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Are many of them in wheelchairs?
MS. LAPIANA:
wheelchairs? Oh, yeah ... (inaudible) . .. because I work all three places, all
three Centers. I would say about. .. oh, no ...here's about one, two, three, four of 'em. In
Wailuku ... uh, let me
Kahului, I think, I would say about 10 or 15 of them. And in. .
see, about. .. 3 of them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. LAPIANA: You know what? They dance the hula on their wheelchair-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. LAPIANA: --and when, when I teach the hula, they hang on to it and they move their
okole.
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. LAPIANA: So they have a great time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Well, it sounds like you're a great inspiration. And
because we

one more
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: '" Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
Ms.
thank you
for your testimony.
is this the Maui Adult Day Care Center, the one next to
Malu-ulu-o-lele Park?
MS. LAPIANA: Yes, it's right

center

you
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No-AUDIENCE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:

which one? You moved?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, where are now?
MS. LAPIANA: Oh, we're up in the street, Lahainaluna.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
MS. LAPIANA: I live one minute away.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, by the new senior housing?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MS. LAPIANA: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MS.

--near

MS. LAPIANA:

you. Mahalo.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
... Seeing none, the next testifier is Dan Snyder. .. followed by Paea Tasini.
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MR. SNYDER: ... Good evening, Council Members. And I thank you for the opportunity to
speak on behalf of Keiki Kokua. My name is Dan Snyder. I'm a resident here and a
foster parent in Lahaina. 1. .. am taking care of my grandsons .. .2- and 3-years-old. Keiki
Kokua, what have they done for me? Um .. .I guess there was a
when I was going,
jumping through the hoops to become a foster parent that. . .I was about two weeks into
it, taking care of a 2- and 3-year-old and .. .I called up somebody, Scott Yoshida... and
told him I can't do it anymore ... because I was making too many trips to the other side. I
met Jim St. James ... and it lifted a lot of weight off of my shoulders. So this
is ... definitely a resource that is needed. They cut through the red tape unbelievably
me. So ...
. . . yeah, I, I'm not good at speaking in front of anybody, so-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You're doing fine.
MR. SNYDER: I just say support Keiki Kokua and consider the funding for them ... for all the
foster parents. And I appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any questions for the testifiers, Members?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Seeing none, thank you, agam, for testifying this evenmg.
Paea Tasini ... followed by Theo Morrison .
MR.

. . . Good evening, Council Members.

course.
is great.
putting together a business
also
me
system
and how we can go about getting a loan. And .. .I was approved for a, a loan.. .I think it
was 15,000. But I didn't wanna take it at that time because I had a .. .I had a big contract.
And ... so I, I didn't take that loan, but after I completed the contract, the work, the ... the
loan was for, was for paying my workers. And after I finished the job, I paid my workers
with that loan. With that loan, I paid back MEO, with, with the money I get back from
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the contract. But I, I ended up paying the ...my workers with my own money from, from
the contract. And I just asked Suzy if I can get 4,500 from her extra to buy some tools.
And I've currently... got the 4,500 loan from them and .. .I still available to 20 more
thousand if I need it. And... also they ... kinda give me free business consulting on how
to incorporate my business go from a sole proprietorship and kinda understand the steps
of building up myself to be a little bit more established than I am. Thank you.
PONTANILLA: Thank you. Uh... Member Baisa, followed by Member Victorino.
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you for your story. Success stories are always wonderful.
What do you do? What is your business?
MR. TASINI: I'm in the process of getting my general contractor's license. It's not a success
yet, but. .. we're getting-COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Well, it's sounds like you-MR. TASINI: --we're getting there.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: You're paying the bills. If you're paying the bills, it's a success.
MR. TASINI: Yeah, yes, I am. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: .. .{laughter} . .. Not, not to mention you're employed and you
employ others. So congratulations. I know it's tough to run your own business, but
you've got the skills.

UAJ'-'"'-" VICTORINO:
I was going
you
you were ....'-HU"-.
what kind of contracting do you do now since you, you haven't gotten your general yet?
What kind of specialty?

MR. TASINI: I go by referrals right now.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. TASINI: And I just make sure that my work is good and then the people tell me they know
so and so. But I do everything from house foundations to framing, all the way, all
way up from the ground up. I build houses.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you build homes?
MR. TASINI: Build homes and landscaping also.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And landscaping?
MR. TASINI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause). ..
PONTANILLA:

Seeing none,
Members.

thank

MS. MORRISON: Maybe next year .. . (laughter) . ..
. . . (laughter). . .
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MS. MORRISON: We are working on it. SO ...we really appreciate you guys coming out. I
think last time there was some big traffic accident or something, so I'm glad you got
through with no, no hang-ups. We're gonna support two issue, two items in the Mayor's
Budget. The first one is the 80,000 for the design of the Wahikuli path in Wahikuli Park.
is the
And this year we have a grant to put interpretative signs along that path.
path that goes right along the ocean in the, in the park right across, on that, on the ... right
across from us right here. And it's, it's one of the most popular beach parks in, in
Lahaina. Just huge .. .local population that, that goes there on the weekends. And also
it's right next to Kaanapali and the visitors frequently go there. So it, this is a great
project. It'll take a couple years to get that whole ... you know, the, the pavement in and
stuff like that, but it'll really enhance the walkability of that park--which is a linear park
between Kaanapali and Lahaina. I'd also like to thank you. You guys got, all got, you
got your packets here? Okay. And you got your cookie? Pick up the cookie.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Thank you.
MS. MORRISON: Okay .. .(laughter) . .. First of all, we'd like to, in, in the, in the .. .in the
packet, the first page is a, is a graph of our commuter bus ridership.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wow.
MS. MORRISON: And I'd really like to thank you for .. .last year, for helping to fund
that. .. that program. It's just fantastic. This has really, really, really helped the local
people. And I also, if you notice, there's a, there's a list of resorts here that are paying
the bus ... the ... the bus fee for these people. So it's not only taking cars off the road, but
it's putting money back into our residents' pockets--which at this point in time is, is
really important. Our other, our big project we're ... sporting tonight is the Lahaina
bus ...

COUNCILMEMBER

Right on.

AUDIENCE: ... (applause). ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good job, Theo.
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MS. MORRlSON: And on the next page there is a-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: '" (laughter) . .. (inaudible) . ..
MS. MORRlSON: --there's a ...map of this bus route, the proposed bus route.
what's
significant about this, this route, it will, it will connect Lahaina neighborhoods to
Lahaina. As Lahaina grew, the neighborhoods grew. And now we have people that
a little too far to walk.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. MORRlSON: To, to work, to the grocery store, to the doctor's office, to the post office.
And this bus will just make all the difference in the world for these people. I have a stack
of petitions here. We have over 800 people signed this petition saying they would
support the Lahaina Villager bus. This bus will run from 8 a.m. in the morning to
11 p.m. at night. And the reason we asked for this is so it can get the employees on the
two shifts in Lahaina back to, back home.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. MORRlSON: Right now ...right now, often an employee can ride a bus into work or get a
ride in... and sometimes they have to take a taxi home at. . .in the evening. Urn ...
. . . (inaudible) . .. I guess my time is up. Urn ...that, so anyway, I just want to this, both
of these, these proposals are in the Mayor's Budget. So we just hope that they stay there.
And the Lahaina Villager bus, the funding for this bus would make a dramatic difference
for
residents West MauL

PONTANILLA: ... testifier? Member..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Theo.
MS. MORRlSON: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And hopefully by next year the bypass will be in also,
right?
MS. MORRISON: ... (laughter) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
MS. MORRISON: We're working on
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Good. You know this ... the Lahaina Villager bus
route-MS. MORRISON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
mommg.

--uh... you were saying starting from 8 o'clock in the

MS. MORRISON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and where would it start from?
MS. MORRISON: Starts from the swimming pool.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And it would be picking up people over there and moving
all the way across.
out to

COUNCILMEMBER
on ...

So

is not gonna get

MS. MORRISON: No. This is not meant to go to the hotels.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay ... {inaudible} . ..
MS. MORRISON: There's another. .. there's a Kaanapali Islander, I think it's called that goes to
the hotels.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And
would be able to
workers that
in Lahaina to go to the hotel?

up people

MS. MORRISON: They would connect.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They would connect. Yeah.
MS. MORRISON: Because it's--yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that's all I wanted to make sure, that that, that
connection was in the same ... same location.
MS. MORRISON: It connects both ways. I believe that connection is at the Cannery. And then
there's another connection at the Wharf Cinema Center for going all the way to Wai ... to
Wailuku and Kahului. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, I just want, because lot of people anticipating
this taking them from up here in Kilauea Mauka and all that into Lahaina... uh, into
Kaanapali for working purposes and coming back.
MS. MORRISON: Yeah.
VICTORINO:

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes,
thanks very
for also having so many
advocates here ... {laughter} . .. tonight for this. What I am looking for on the 330,000
that's in the Mayor's Budget now, are there any other additional businesses that would be
supporting this or is the 300,000 in addition to any other businesses? Like if there is ... to
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serve employees, would any of the companies help out with any of the funding? You
know, like monthly bus passes or anything?
MS. MORRISON: We haven't discussed that with them. But
IS
businesses would do that. Like Old Lahaina Luau, I
the highest
of employees.
sure they would.

sure some of the larger
largest business in town,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
and I just, you know,
you can get any
feedback to us 'cause I know it's gonna be a tight budget year. I mean, actually, I'd love
to have it be free ... (laughter) . .. but I, I don't know if that's realistic this year or not.
So anyway we'll ... we ... see what we can do. And thanks very much for being an
advocate ... (inaudible). ..
MS. MORRISON: We're advocating a dollar for. .. forboarding on this bus.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Great.
MS. MORRISON: We feel that's reasonable.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks so much.
MS. MORRISON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We have one more question from Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. MORRISON:

no,

a

Okay, so ...
operated by the County.
MS. MORRISON: Correct. Correct. We're just. .. we're the cheerleaders for
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter) . ..... (end a/tape, start 2A) . . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Any more questions for the testifier?
... (applause) . ..

PONTANILLA:
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Kate Bahr?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Bahr approached the podium.

MS. BAHR: ... Good evening, Council Members. My name is Kate Bahr, and I also work with
Lahaina Bypass Now. I'm requesting your support, also, for the Lahaina Villager bus. I
have personally received an overwhelming positive response from the community for this
new bus route. From walking around town with petitions to receiving feedback from our
website and phone calls, everyone I have talked with are very excited for the service to
start. One woman called to tell me how happy she was that Lahaina Bypass Now is
working on this Lahaina Villager bus route. She told me she lives up Lahainaluna Road,
works two jobs, and can't drive. She actually started crying on the phone when talking
about why this bus service would have such an important impact on her life. It is
employees, seniors, kids, parents ...the Lahaina community as a whole that will benefit
from this bus service. Besides helping to relieve traffic congestion, it will provide
substantial savings and alternative transportation options
residents .

... Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier this evening?
... Seeing none, thank you, again.
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AUDIENCE: ., . (applause) . ..
PONTANILLA: Okay, the next set of testifiers are from the Boys and Girls Club. So
gonna
.. everyone. And, and you can
up and ... provide your testimony.
First up is Maurice Bajon ... Lydia Fernandez, Estee Cole, Justin Fernandez,
.. Sophie Mata'afa, Chad Elam.
Courtney Galarita, Linsey
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Boy, the whole .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Don Couch, as well as-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER _ : .. , (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Colin Hanlon.
NOTE:

Pause while the group approached the podium.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Go ahead.
MR. BAJON: Aloha, everyone. My name is Maurice Bajon, and I'm the Unit Director for the
West Maui Boys and Girls Club. And just as an aside, I wanted to congratulate all the
young people that are here. As somebody who works with youth, I'm very impressed
with everybody who's here and participating in the democratic process. It's good to see

on
core areas to address
our
caring,
responsible citizens.
life skills, arts, sports and recreation, and
education and career development. In our career. .. uh, in our character and leadership
programs, we empower the youth to support and influence their Club and community.
We want them to be able to sustain meaningful relationships with others, develop a
positive self-image, and participate
the democratic process and respect their own and
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others' cultural heritage. In our West Maui Club, that means we do daily community
service--be it our Club or off-site. And now that we moved to the Front Street location,
we're able to do beach cleanups more often than we used to be able to do at the old club.
We also take members to County Council meetings whenever they discuss issues that
concern our Club or
lives. We
them speak to the Mayor or
County Council.
Thank you for coming. And last year, our Youth of the Year for 2007, Jacob ... Arakawa
spoke to the Mayor Tavares in September. And this year, Courtney, Youth of the Year
for 2008, will be coming up in a few minutes talking to you. The health and life skills
curriculum is meant to develop young person's capacity to engage in positive behaviors
that nurture their own wellbeing ... allowing to set personal goals, and live successfully as
self-sufficient adults. And there'll be other members testifying about that. One of the
programs is Smart Moves. It talks about abstinence and the graduates ... more awareness
about the dangers of drugs and sex. We also have health habits, which are basically
cooking classes that are nutritional and wholesome. And in arts, we enable the youth to
develop their creativity and cultural awareness through knowledge and appreciation of
visual arts, crafts, performing arts, and creative writing. We used to have a dance club.
Courtney will tell you about that. Creative writing assignments. We're just starting now
a comedy and drama club--thanks to our volunteers. And we have daily crafts. Um .. .in
our programs that fall under sports and recreation heading, we encourage developing
fitness, positive use of leisure time, skills for stress management, appreciation for the
environment, and social skills. We basically hold daily tournaments. We have team
play, sportsmanship awards. We also hold the Pump, Pass and Kick, and the Pitch, Hit
and Run competitions locally. This year we were able to sponsor four kids to go to
San Diego. And one of the contestants became number one ...person in the nation in her
age group. And she was recognized by the County Council with a resolution. And we
thank you very much for that. We're very proud of her. And finally, in our education
and career development core area which is very close to my heart, we enable the youth to
become
in basic educational disciplines, apply learning everyday situations,
to

a career.
a few
you'll
MR. BAJON: --they need to do that
can tum
to these happy members and you'll know why sometimes .. .I don't feel like I work at
Boys and Girls Club but Make-A-Wish Foundation. Because I feel that a well-funded
Boys and Girls Club can be a dream-maker for these kids. So please continue support for
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Boys and Girls Club of Maui. And enjoy listening to these kids. Thank you for your
time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you-MR. BAJON: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MR. BAJON: --questions for that testifier?
AUDIENCE: .,. (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none ...next testifier?
MISS FERNANDEZ: Hello, my name is Lydia Fernandez. Thank you for letting me speak.
What I do at the Boys and Girls Club? The Boys and Girls Club is a lot of fun. We do
art, cooking, and Hawaiiana. I'm glad I go to the Boys and Girls Club. This year we
went to the funest field trip ever. We went to the Maui Ocean Center. We saw lots of
cool sea animals. We saw the Hawaiian garden eel, coral reef shark .. .(inaudible) . ..
green sea turtle, and the sting rays. I just can't wait for the next field trip--a day at the
beach. At the Boys and Girls Club, we went to the beach and went surfing with
Sanoe Lake ... the professional surfer. Me and Courtney, your Youth of the Year, went to
505. My instructor was Tara Angeleti. She, she was the best instructor ever.
Sanoe Lake autographed my shirt and bag. After, we went to the Billabong Surf Contest
The Sea Life.
at
I wrote a book. .

MISS COLE: Hi, my name is
.. Estee Cole. I am 9. I. . .I love going to the Boys and
Girls Club. My favorite game is pool ... (inaudible). . .
and cool. I love doing art
and cooking. I love playing with my friends in the Boys and Girls Club. If the Boys and
Girls Club shut down, I would worry about Maurice, J en, and Danielle. The Boys and
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Girls .. .is where all the kids play games, do art and activities. On school days ... we do
Power Hour and we do cleanup at 5 0' clock. Then we .. .in, when the staff are sick, we
make "hope you feel better" cards. J en and Danielle are the best staff members I've ever
pretty excited what they have to say.
met. We have girl groups and so do the boys.
When I lived Kihei, life was bad because we didn't have the Boys and Girls Club.
never went to field trips or played games or do stuff. We did ...wait. We didn't
lots of friends. But since I moved to Lahaina, life is great. Please support the Boys and
Girls Club Maui. Aloha and thank you.
AUDIENCE: ., . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Whew! Good job!
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause) . ..
MASTER FERNANDEZ: Hello, my name ...hello, my name is Justin Fernandez. I'm 9% and I
go to Boys and Girls Club West Maui. Thank you for listening to my speech. One day,
the Boys and Girls Club took us to a field trip to the Bishop Museum on Oahu. There
was a planetarium. There was a host so she can tell us about space. First, we were
looking at the world. She ... she showed us the world 240 million years in the past
and...what the world looks like at night and how big or where the tsunamis are in the
world. Then she, then she showed the planets and the host let us guess what planet it is.
There are only two planets out of nine planets, they were Mars and Jupiter. After that, we
got to go in the space when you look up under stars. A few seconds later, the lights got
low and stars appeared. When I looked, things were moving and I started to hear voices.
It was a video. It was mostly about stars, constellations, and the telescope. After the
video, the host was talking about constellation... deep sky objects, and planets. My
V~LLU'~'U"H'-n.LU are Orion,
Big

MASTER
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: '" be careful.
MASTER FERNANDEZ: ... My favorite detail objects are the Great Orion Nebula. And my
favorite planets are Jupiter and Saturn. Jupiter's bigger, but Saturn's famous for its ring.
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The host was talking about the constellations and all .. .(inaudible) . .. She was talking
about the ones that are circled, too. After, we had to go somewhere else in the museum.
When I grow up, I want to be a... a... scientist for Astronomy, but I'm getting there. I've
Boys and Girls Club. Please support
learned a lot of things by reading the books at
the Boys and Girls Club.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
MISS GALARITA: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Courtney Mae Galarita and
I am 11 years old. I am a member of the West Maui Boys and Girls Club. I've been
coming to the Club for about 2Y2 years. And I'm honored to be Youth of the Year. One
of the coolest things that I did this year at the Club was to learn how to surf. At first, I
was really scared. But when I got a hold of it, I was just fine. When I see a wave, I just
start paddling, then when I stand up, I feel very good about myself and that I learned how
to do something I never knew how to do before. After surfing, my friend Lydia and I saw
a professional surfer named Sanoe Lake. You might remember her from the movie Blue
Crush .
. . . When I met her, she signed my bag and my calendar.
... I will, it was ... so cool and she rocks at surfing. One of my favorite things that I used
to do at the Club was dancing. It was awesome and very exciting to learn something
new. My dancing teacher... was Cheryl. She is really cool and she was a wonderful
teacher. I got really close to her, but she left the Club for a better-paying job and I was
really sad. So please support the West Maui Boys and Girls Club.
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause). ..

a
exposed to ... (sneeze) . .. excuse me.
streets
to
hanging out on
home alone waiting
me to get off work. I
one of the main reasons
Club strive so high is because they are greatly rewarded. It ranges anywhere from snack
bar dollars to big excursions. The other kids see this and want the same rewards. My son
was fortunate enough to earn the honor of Youth of Month last year. He got a certificate
which we promptly framed and displayed on
wall. He, with another Youth of the
Month, went with Danielle and Jen to a lunch at Bubba Gumps. He was also rewarded
IS
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with other Club members to a trip to the Fun Factory for completing Project Learn and
Power Hour. My son has also been given many opportunities to go places and do things
that he normally would not get the chance to do. A few of them include going to Oahu
on the Superferry to participate in the Night at the Museum at Bishop Museum. He
also attended the
recently got to go to the Cal Ripken Sf. Baseball Clinic, and
Bowl Youth Football Clinic. They have gone to movies, Maui Ocean Center, whale
watches, and even other Club sites for shared and special events. Most of these events
are very low cost or usually free. This means he always gets to go. He never misses out
because the fee is too high and I can't afford it. The staff is easily approachable and they
always keep me informed of what's going on. They also take the time to ask if there's
any things I don't want or allow my son to participate in... even if it's simply watching a
movie at the Club. As a single mom, the Club has one of the most important things--it is
staffed with some of the most amazing male role models. All of the staff members take
the time to create real relationships with the kids. They know their likes, dislikes, habits,
and little quirks. They give special attention to details. They teach them, listen to them,
help them with problems, and give them guidance and advice. This only comes from true
dedication and having the drive to go above and beyond the norm. I know my son has
gratefully benefited from every aspect of the Club. And so have 1. My daughter looks
forward to coming to the Club when she's old enough. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
MS. COLE: Aloha, I'm Toni Cole. We have two children who are active members at the Boys
and Girls Club. We are truly blessed .. .in Lahaina. And I'm here to thank you for
supporting such a structured, positive, loving and caring-PONTANILLA: Excuse me--

CHAIR PONTANILLA: --because of the bus schedule. I just wanna say
being here-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and providing your testimony.
AUDIENCE: ... {applause} . ..
NOTE:

Pause while the Members ojthe Lahaina-Honobia Senior Citizens Club exited thejacility.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I know, they're the best. They brought us leis and food and
cookies and wow ... can't beat .. . (inaudible). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hello. How are you?
AUDIENCE: ... {inaudible} . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .{inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: They're the best, man. When they're going, they go .
. . . Oh, I'm sorry. Be very careful, darling. Don't fall.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

MS.

you.

..a

to
hang out.
employees are wonderful. Maurice has always has a beautiful
and a
positive, powerful words to tell, tell our children. And Danielle always crafting and
spending quality time with our children as wen. Thanks again for the support. Please
continue your support of our children ofMaui.
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COUNClLMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANlLLA: Thank you .
. . . (applause) . ..
NOTE:

Pause.

up there. Good evening--

MR. HANLON: ... (inaudible) . .. try to put
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Good evening.

MR. HANLON: --Committee Chair Pontanilla, Council Members. Thank you for giving us the
opportunity to testify tonight. My name is Colin Hanlon, I'm the Chief Professional
Officer of the Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui. I've been with the organization for
14 years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Oh, my god.
MR. HANLON: In that time, I've seen much growth in, in our organization.. .in many ways.
Much positive growth. Club sites. When I first got involved, we had two units. And we
now have five charted units, full units of the Boys and Girls Club; one chartered
extension... over at Kahekili Terrace. We all, one of the other chartered sites that we
started was over in Paukukalo on Hawaiian Home Lands. And we have a multitude of
outreach opportunities that we, that we ... (inaudible) . ..
. . . We've also grown the registered membership to over 1,700 ... 1,792 last year.

year--4,204.
attendance
that this year. Professionally trained staff. We have over 34 professional trained staff
and we have doubled the training opportunities during the last year for our staff. We
bring out at no cost to us, we bring out national trainers from the Boys and Girls Clubs.
Some of the programs you heard of today--Project Learn... Torch Club, Keystone
Club ... Smart Moves. These, these all take professional training. We don't, we don't
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invent stuff. We, we have Best Practice Science-based programs that we offer to the
community. And that takes training. We invest in our staff. Uh... the increased amount
of professional youth development program that we offer--again, we, we continue to add
programs like Career Launch and Job Ready... for our community to make sure that our
kids are ready to move on when they're 18 from the Club.
my tenure, I've .. .I've also
seen the growth of Maui County... over the last 14 years. And with that, has grown the
need for youth development services on the island. It is ... youth development, the Boys
and Girls Club has always stayed true to its mission in serving all the youth of Maui. In
doing so, we'll continue to strive to extend our reach and deepen our impact that we're
having with each an every individual that comes to the Club. Our job is to ensure that all
of our kids have a safe place to go, and they have hope, and that we create opportunity.
When Maurice was up here, he was talking about Pass, Punt and Kick; Pitch, Hit and
Run. The parents are talking about field trips. It is our job to make sure that our kids
have all those opportunities. Some of the kids spoke of what their goals were and, and
they get those visions and they see those possibilities through what they do at the Club.
Uh... we're definitely serving-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. HANLON: --serving more kids. And, and we're trying to be very responsible
partners ... nonprofit partners with the County of Maui. In doing so, we've started a golf
tournament, an annual campaign. We've increased our foundation giving ...we're the
receiving part ofthe giving. We've increased our corporate giving and we've joined with
the Hawaii alliance of Boys and Girls Clubs in order to help leverage State funds by
showing all the Boys and Girls Clubs in the State going together and asking for State
funds. Uh ... what we're asking for this year is, is that you increase the Mayor's Budget
the Youth Centers. She has it at 1.8 for Youth Centers. And we need it to be
2. .
. .2
dollars .

. . . (applause) . ..
MR. COUCH: Good evening, Council. My name is Don Couch, and
the Chief Volunteer
Officer for the Boys and Girls Club. That's the Board President. I wanna thank you for
your continued support, especially for the West Maui renovation. Uh .. .! do wanna talk
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about what the Board is doing for the Boys and Girls Club. We have done an extensive
project with the, an independent consulting firm, the Regional Service Director of the
Boys and Girls Club of America, and the whole board doing a job classification and
compensation management plan. Our problem as you've heard some of our testifiers
today say, we can't keep staff because they gotta find a bigger, higher paying job. The
board as a whole felt that it would be ...most important to ... get the salaries to a point
where people can stay and be a constant face for the kids when they're at the clubs. So
we worked heavily on our, as Colin said, our retention and recruitment efforts of our
most valuable resource, our staff. That's ... that's the best--when the kids come out from
school, they gotta see the same faces every time. You heard it from them. I wanna thank
you very much. And as Colin said, we wanna go if we can, from 1.8 million to 2 million
for all the Youth Centers ... of which we get a piece of that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
AUDIENCE: .. , (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for ...
AUDIENCE: ., .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Mr. Hanlon or Mr. Couch at this time?
.?
. .. QuestlOn.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Couch, mahalo for your testimony.
you.
some

goes to
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So

a--

MR. COUCH: All the youth centers. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --it's a, it's a split ofthat--

-44 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2008

MR. COUCH: Yep.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Youth Center pot?
MR. COUCH: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.

HHuauv.

MR. COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Uh, Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... Thank you. Don, when you said ...how many youth
centers throughout the County?
MR. COUCH: There are nine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine? And you have reached your, you, you guys have
five.
there's 10 now. We have

MR. HANLON: And that's, that's independent. We, we, we actually get most of the funding for
that site through
Office of Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention, which is Federal
money.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so of this 2 million or, or l.8, then it's divided
up amongst all the youth centers? That doesn't count, include Kahekili and all these
other ones 'cause they're, they're satellites, right?
MR. HANLON: Again, we get about 125 to
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

site.

MR. HANLON: --through the Office of Justice ... Office of Juvenile Justice Delinquency
Prevention, another, separate grant that we do.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So what we, we actually, that site does not get
County funds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, thank you very
much for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, I'm gonna take the next two testifiers ... and then we'll take
our. .. break as soon as we hear from Jason Hufala... Hufalar and Kevin Kaaihue.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Hulalar and Mr. Kaaihue approached the podium.

PONTANILLA: ... They'll be testifying on the MEO B.E.S.T. Reintegration program.

PONTANILLA:

you,

any questions

AUDIENCE: .,. (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, Jason, your tum.
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MR. HUF ALAR: Hello. My name is Jason Hufalar. I representing the MEO B.E.S.T.
Reintegration program. Born and raised, Maui boy. And no disrespect to any of the
youth programs here but ... (cleared throat) . .. I wish I knew about toxic stress when I
was a kid. I could have used that
.
defense.
know what I
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: '" (laughter) . ..
. . .(laughter). ..

MR. HUFALAR: Yeah, brah ... (laughter) . .. Didn't work.

know what I mean?

AUDIENCE: ., . (laughter) . ..
MR. HUFALAR: No, you know what I mean... you know Ijust .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's true.
MR. HUFALAR: Yeah, it's true. But. . .I like, I'd just like to say, you know, after the Boys and
Girl Club fails and after the foster care fails and after... you know everything on Maui
fails--'cause I am a product of that. .. you can check the record, it's in the newspaper,
they printed it many, many times. So there's nothing anybody here can say that ain't
already been said about me. But. .. you know, which is why when I came to MEO after
doing 15 years in prison for murder. .. going in at 19 and coming out at 34, now I have a
year-and-a-half on parole. You know, I told these guys straight. . .like I tell everybody
straight, you know what I mean, I just one blunt guy. I honest to a fault. You know what
I mean? And .. .I just told 'em. I said, look, every single counselor, every single person,
every single foster care, step dad, whoever

CHAIR
AUDIENCE:

Thank you, Jason. Members, any questions-.. (applause) . ..

CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for

testifier?
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AUDIENCE: ., .(applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Jason, thank you very
for being here tonight. I know it's
never easy. But I appreciate it. It is very hard when we've tried to do a program with
inmates for people to really understand the need for it. So I wanted to ask this. Can you
tell me, you mentioned all of the things you went through and all the people who tried to
help you--what do you think is the difference with B.E.S.T.? Why do you think it works?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. HUF ALAR: ... You guys no give up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: They don't give up?
MR. HUFALAR: You guys no give up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. HUFALAR: And I can honestly say, you know what I ... (end of tape, start 2B) . .. I buck
heads with Ms. Kong, Shirota, Gladys ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
HUF ALAR: ... I mean I, I just ran these people into the ground. You know what I mean?
I
just never gave
know growing

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, so what do you do
MR. HUFALAR: What do I do? Well--
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Do you have a, you have ajob?
MR. HUFALAR: Yeah. I just, I just made 90 percent carpenter apprentice.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Wonderful.
MR. HUF ALAR: I make 31 dollars an hour, take home.
AUDIENCE: ., . (applause) . ..
MR. HUF ALAR: I just bought a, I just bought a condo. I got two new cars. A loving wife.
And paid off, paid off 20,000 dollars in child support. All legal. Thank you, MEO.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you so much. You're a fine example-AUDIENCE: ., . (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. HUF ALAR: All right. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
I

Yeah, I

I

about

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know? You know? Yeah, you got it, dude.
MR. HUFALAR: .. . (laughter) ...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, in our day we no had talk. We had cracks.
MR. HUF ALAR: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
I was lucky because
way I came out a better man.
I get one good lady as a wife for 32 years and... you know
good things. But like
you, I stubborn. And she knows that.
MR. HUFALAR: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I stubborn. But you know, keep up the good work and
don't give up helping B.E.S.T. because they helped you. Go help the other guys 'cause
going get the other guys going come up they not going think. And you can be there and
tell 'em, bruddah, I been there and then ... you going make a big difference. You know?
So keep up the good work.
MR. HUFALAR: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. HUFALAR: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jason.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, we're gonna take a ,,,,,u-u,,,uu,.., recess and we
8:55
reconvene at

IS

RECONVENE:

recess ...

7:58 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . (gavel) . .. Okay, thank you for allowing us to take a short recess.
1'd like to call the next testifiers ... Kiani [sic} Hayes, followed by Dylan Lehmann.
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NOTE:

MISS

Pause while Miss Hayes approached the podium.

: ... Hello.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Make sure

on.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is it on?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Is it on? . . (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Try talk directly into it.
MISS HAYES: Hello.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: There you go.
MISS HAYES: .. .{laughter} . .. My name is Kiana Hayes, and I'm a member of the Focus
Maui Nui Youth Alliance. The Focus Maui Nui Youth Alliance is a project of the Maui
Economic Development Board. And I would ask for your continued financial support.
What it is is a bunch of us high schoolers from across Maui, we meet once a month. And
each meeting, we go to various business on Maui and we learn what they do and how
they affect our economy. And from this, I've learned a lot about the economic growth in,
future we
on Maui ... and ... some of our concerns

.. um ..
'rn-n,u-r'l'U for you to ,",V".HH'"v
opportunities
me to go
my concerns for my Maui--'cause you
born and raised
out and
And through this, I get a lot of friends and peers from across, from Maui. And we all
have the same concerns and the same problems that we wanna voice. And coming
together, we've learned a lot about how we can make those changes and how we
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can .. .learn about various job opportunities and how to become a better person ... and try
and make those changes that we wanna accomplish in the future. Thank you.
PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Kiana. Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you, again, for coming out

testifying.

AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dylan Lehmann? Dylan?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . .. to leave.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Kim ... Kim ... Clelland ...
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... followed by Leonardo Sequeira.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Clelland, Mr. Sequeira, and Ms. Schap approached the podium.

MS. SCHAP: ... Good evening .
COUNCILMEMBER
COUNCILMEMBER

. . . (inaudible) . ..

: Speak

a
grammatical VH"'UA'~'"
would sound proper when I read
Otherwise, all the words are his.
it may
concern, we have a lot of concerns about an important issue for us, the Hispanic people.
Awhile ago when we came to here to Maui, we found an office that helped us a lot--that
is MEO Enlace Hispano. The Enlace Hispano team gives us any kind of information
about different topics and works hard with the Hispanic community. We have
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confidence. We support them 100 percent. We know that the team works hard for us.
We enjoy the traditional festival, Somos Amigos, with our families. Every year, the
door. .. every year. And the door is always open for us. At this point, the Hispanic
community is still in need of the help from Enlace Hispano. The community is growing.
More and more people need help.
the most amazing thing, Enlace Hispano ... are just
four people. Please allow Enlace Hispano to keep working
the Hispanic
community. We need your support. Our families need our support, your support.
Thanks, mahalo, gracias, Hildadro Casil for the Hispanic community of Lahaina.
... Thank you. And now
on the list.

tum it over to

. . . (laughter) . .. who is the next person

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kim?
MS. CLELLAND: Okay. See if you can hear me. Probably .. . (laughter). .. My name is
Kim Clelland. I work for the WIC program, which is Women, Infants, and Children. I'm
not asking for your support for that 'cause it's a Federal program, so we have our own
issues. But anyway .. . (laughter) . .. in WIC, we have a huge Hispanic community here
in Lahaina and a growing community in Kihei. We need desperately to have Enlace
Hispano help us, not only with translation and interpretation but with, also the clients
needing to maneuver the systems such as WIC, but also Quest and food stamps and other
places where we refer our clients. As, as you may know about Women, Infants, and
Children program ...we refer everybody to prenatal care and try to emphasize that it's
important to seek the care early. Not that the Hispanic community would not want to do
this, but it is very difficult to maneuver in some of the systems--to understand Quest, to
understand where to seek insurance, how to sign up. They have, the help of Enlace
Hispano ... all of
workers, all the time and the support to know that they can call them
get
at
of
day and any hours ... that they
want to have this

evemng,
so
day to come over and see us. My name is Leonardo Sequeira.
though I
live here in Lahaina, but I come over here at least five to six days ... on the month to help
.. Kim was saying, with the public notices and
out with the translation--like
program with the Department of Health. As you know, the Hispanic community is
demand is extremely, is growing accordingly. And
growing very rapidly. And..
us ... Enlace Hispano, we're still the same. My co-worker, Hildie, is a program manager,
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another individual that she's ...half-time. And then myself, I'm an outreach specialist.
And I go all over the place. I go with them to Kihei also, as well as Lahaina over here.
Urn ... 1 had ... a letter that you might have in front of you from two of the public nurses.
Uh...briefly, unfortunately, they couldn't be here because the conflict of the, some of the
things and one of the nurses ... nurses, Lou-lou Linker, she lives on Molokai and she
travels everyday. But she wanted to definitely, you know, she couldn't make it over here.
I have helped her personally, many times. And I have some of her business card because
we kind of joked and say if in fact they wanna double check if it's true what you're gonna
say on the letter, here's a business card, so they can give us a call and we'll be able to ...
. . . ask whatever question you have .
. . . So I've got some business cards over here from them. If you can please pass it out? I
will take the time right now to read the letter, please? Dated March 18, County of Maui,
Council Members, Wailuku, Hawaii 96793. Dear Council Members, the purpose of this
letter is in support of the MEO Community Services Outreach Program. MEO has
helped so many people in Maui, on Maui in many different ways. They continue to
support our community and provide services that are crucial for those that have lived here
all their lives, as well as newcomers. There is a continuous influx of Hispanic people on
Maui. Many of the women are having their children born on Maui. There are many
families with young children, as well as school-age children. Language is a barrier to
providing services to these families. Communication is so important to being able to
receive any kind of services. Hispanic translators provide a very important role in
allowing families receive services that are needed for them to survive. They are able to
translate for families and help them to gain access to different services. The translators
also assist the providers in communicating with Hispanic families so they can also meet
their needs. The MEO Community Services Outreach Specialists, Enlace Hispano
Program
so many Hispanic
able to
services provided by

so
Mahalo
time
Tarni Corpuz ... Corpuel, Public .LU;,<tHU Nurses,
H'-'.LU'-''-'

Sincerely, Louise
Comprehensive Health Center.

LJQUa.Lu<t

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: One quick question for--
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MR. SEQUEIRA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --Mr. Sequeira. What are your work hours?
MR. SEQUEIRA: Our work hours are from 7:45 to 4:30 officially. But here we are. Okay?
Many times ... people call during the week. Sometime even see clients at the park, beach,
or the WalMart, Kmart, wherever they are--and they always, constantly asking for
services, referrals ... numbers, where to go, what to do, and so on. And let me add also,
as you know, Ms. Baisa, that we also host. .. the Mexican Consulate comes twice a year
over here on Maui. As a matter of fact, he's coming
a couple weeks. And we also
host the Guatemalan Consulate to come also.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So it sounds like you're also a Council member. We're on duty
all the time.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) . ..
MR. SEQUEIRA: 24-7, rna' am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter). .. Thank you.
AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. SEQUEIRA: ... (laughter) . ..
PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?

a conserve,
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes?
MR. SEQUEIRA: ... numbers-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
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MR. SEQUEIRA:
--I would say probably .. J would say between 800 to a 1,000
... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On the west side?
MR. SEQUEIRA: Yeah. That would be-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SEQUEIRA: --a conservative liLt'."'P'"
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And is, and

Kihei?

MR. SEQUEIRA: Oh, Kihei, we looking at, but they're growing in Kihei.
easy.. .just with the WIC program, we probably have 200. You know?

I would say

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So there's a large community growing-MR. SEQUEIRA: Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --very quickly, yeah?
MR. SEQUEIRA: Yes, we do. Oh, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know why, yeah, I used to make a joke with my son
when he was in high school he studied Spanish. And I used to tell him study Japanese-SEQUEIRA: ...

s correct.
know, so now at least

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
talk with them. So thank you very

MR. SEQUEIRA: Thank you very much for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Take care.
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MR. SEQUEIRA: Appreciate that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and. .
I ask, you know, like, because I know
that there's different fields, 'cause I know we have some workers-MR. SEQUEIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that work for Island Plant and whatnot. .. what are the
general areas of employment for most of your membership or most of the people you're
assisting?
MR. SEQUEIRA: If I have to put in some sort of a order-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Category. Yeah.
MR. SEQUEIRA: --a category, I would say probably Lahaina area. And I mean, Lahaina,
Honokowai, you know, Napili, et cetera... okay, because ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
classes. Like, are they ...

... {inaudible} . .. that I'm talking about, like occupation

MR. SEQUEIRA: ... (inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... landscaping ...

No completely,
they
because
their. . .language barrier, as far as their culture
they're, most of the time because
barrier, they, they're not aware of the situation that's going on and that's one of the
reason why we come ... the ... make a big part of a play for us as ao .. Enlace Hispano to
.. . (inaudible). .. the people and tell 'em and guide 'em so that this is what you gotta do,
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this is where you need to go, this is the people you gotta talk to if you need this and so
on.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I appreciate-MR. SEQUEIRA: ... (inaudible) . .. service.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that you're doing that, but I

LHHU>.--

MR. SEQUEIRA: Yes, rna' am.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --the employers also should bear responsibility for providing
benefits because I don't believe any ethnic group should be taken advantage of because
they have those problems.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Yes, ma'am. We-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I think it's incumbent upon our employers to do that. And I
would hope that. .. you know, you can work with the employers to step up to the plate
because it's unfair to access programs-MR. SEQUEIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
employment.

--when they rightfully should be provided through the

no.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but it's-MR. SEQUEIRA: It's ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you know, the employers really--

- 58 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2008

MR. SEQUEIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --need to do a little bit more.
assistance providing that, then I think they should do

And, and

they need

MR. SEQUEIRA: I definitely agree with that. We all pull-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. SEQUEIRA: --together.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. SEQUEIRA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you
for being here. Uh ...
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Walter Chihara, followed by Kathy Kekahuna.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
MR. CHIHARA: ... Good evening, Council Members. I'm Walter Chihara. Uh..
here to
and AIda St. John [sic] with the Keiki Kokua group. Six years ago or so,
1. .. took the training to
foster care ... givers here on
or

So ...
the way that
keiki program will help foster care and adoptive care
and... uh ... elderly care would be that they support them and give them any resources or
advice that they could use to be better foster parents. So I'm just asking that you do
support this line item and ... uh ... so that it would be able to ... help foster care and
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adoptive care .. .improve and grow in the future. I think it'll be a very proactive way to
help the situation. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Member Medeiros?

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony this evemng.
you're, you're a foster. .. care parent provider?

Uh ... so

MR. CHIHARA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And in that program... up to how many children ean
you foster care at one time within your home?
MR. CHIHARA: Um... we usually had two.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What's allowed as far as numbers?
MR. CHIHARA: I'm not real sure.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. CHIHARA: ... It's five. Jim just told me it's five.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, five.
MR. CHIHARA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay. And I'm sure it's dependent on the house and
how many bedrooms and so forth. Okay. Well. .. you know, I applaud you for being a
foster care parent. It's ... admirable of you.
MR. CHIHARA: Thank you-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo.
MR. CHIHARA: --very much. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Seeing none, thank you,
agam.
MR. CHIHARA: You're welcome.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kathy Kekahuna ...
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... followed by Pam English.
MS. KEKAHUNA: ... Hi, my name is Kathy Kekahuna. I just got a home here at Leialii. My
husband was number two on the list and I thank god for that. But I'm not only a foster
parent. I'm also Pastor. .. and also a special need teacher at King Kamehameha III. But
I'm here to support the foster because I've had like six all together. They age from baby
all the way to 16. The last one that left me was 16 and had a baby.
· .. Yeah. And when they bought me two, they... they called me up and they said, uh, we
got a child, can you take 'em? Well, what's wrong with her? Oh, she going through
some hard time, but we know you can do it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. KEKAHUNA: So I says, okay, bring 'em over, you know, I'll take 'em. When they bought
me, she wasn't in, she dropped out of school at 6th grade. Try that one. She dropped out
at 6th grade, they gave 'em to me, I put her in the high school. .. at Lahainaluna. The
reason is the school calls me and say can you take a kid. See, and that's how important
this Keiki Kokua is and the foster parents--there's not enough of us out there to help us
support. And so when I took the girl, I registered for school and then finally the system
got the papers to send to her.
· .. She didn't have that education. She has seven siblings all at different foster parents.
And there's--you know, a lot of people say why do you take these kids, aren't they drugs,
alcoholic? Yeah. Well, I going be honest with you--I was a former alcoholic for almost
15 years.
· .. And most of you know my brother, Pastor Lucky. Well, he took me and, with my
family. And from there, that's how we became pastors like we are. But the St. James
took us about maybe six years, eight years ago and asked us ...trained us. We gave up
time to go to foster parents' class, then they gave us children. Now when they come to
us, they look at our house. I started off with an apartment, so I could only have one
kid--whatever was available. I had an open room for a girl. So they gave me a girl. But
then they always threw in a baby there somehow.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter). ..
MS. KEKAHUNA: And they say well, this don't count. .. because they only infant, you can put
'em inside one playpen or stuff. But they never gave us that stuff. Because we're also
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ministry, we went out and bought it to help. 'Cause the system takes a lot of. . .long time
to get your first paycheck. And I know that 'cause I also work for the State of Hawaii as
a special needs--takes like three months before I get my first paycheck. But see, the part
is I'm not here for the money. 'Cause if it was for the money, I would not be working at
the school, which they don't pay us enough; and I wouldn't be taking anybody's kid in.
But because of the St. James making a difference and telling us--that's why now I
encourage a lot of people .. .in fact, I've got two members of my church that just
graduated to become foster parents. And I said, you went through hard times, there's
people, kids out there that going through hard time now. We need foster parents. We
need the support for these ...things to come in. 'Cause the system will help you, but they
won't come in until four or five months later. In the meantime, how do you support the
kids? Well, as I told people, because of god, a lot of you, lot of you may see me on TV, I
also preach on Channel 52-MS. WlLLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. KEKAHUNA: --which a lot of kids come up and adults .. .I seen you on TV. Well, I hope
you not looking to me ... because I can't help you. Really, the one above can help us.
And he's helping each and everyone, and plus you that make a good decision. Gladys,
she helped me a lot. I also go into prison .. .in my spare time ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
MS. KEKAHUNA: ... and minister like how they help. I mean, I don't even have enough time
in the day since I ... (inaudible) . .. but I make a difference with the help of the Lord, like
all of you making a difference. So the support is what we're looking at--more foster
parents .. .if you know anybody out there can help us. Okay? Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Kathy. Members-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: If not, thank you very much. Pam English?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE AUDIENCE: She left.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: She left? Francis Bayless?
... Francis Bayless?
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... Not here? Kamaile Yamamoto?
NOTE:

Very long pause while Miss Yamamoto approached the podium.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... You go, girl.
MISS YAMAMOTO: . . . Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Kamaile Yamamoto, and I'm here to ask for your support of the
MEO Youth Bank program and transportation... and MEO Transportation, and to thank
you for funding this program in the past. I attend Maui Waena School as an 8th grader
and live in Kahului. The MEO Youth Bank has helped me by giving me a place to go, a
place to learn and do my work ...homework, and also kept me out of trouble. I enjoy
seeing the MEO staff and learned a lot from them. I am a new member of the MEO
Youth Bank. I joined because I got suspended from school and they have a program that
I go to so I can pass the 8th grade. The staff helps me with my homework in the morning
and continues into the afternoon. Please support the funding for the MEO Youth Bank
and MEO Transportation. It'll help me and my friends become better citizens of Maui
County. Thank you for the opportunity to testify and for all you do for the Maui, for the
people of Maui County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Kamaile.
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier?
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Very good job .
. . . Next test, testifier is Ryan Bartolome ...
. . . followed by Hy... Hans Michel.
NOTE:

Pause while Master Bartolome approached the podium.

MASTER BARTOLOME: ... Good evening, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Ryan Bartolome, and I'm here to ask your support of the MEO
Youth Bank and MEO Transportation Department, and thank you for funding this
program in the past. I am a student at Maui Waena Intermediate School and in the 8th
grade, and I live in Kahului. The MEO Youth Bank has helped me learn more about
culinary training and ...
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· .. and we did lessons about tobacco prevention. This past year, we went up to Kula
forest and we got down in our knees and planted some native plants.
· .. And in this program, it kept me ... busy after school and doing good things ... every
day and I learn more about our environments ...too. Please support the funding for the
MEO Youth Bank and the Transportation Department. Thank you for the opportunity to
testify and for all you do for the people ofMaui County. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ryan. Members, any-AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --questions for tbe testifier?
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ryan, you did a very good job. And I'll tell Mr. Joyo-AUDIENCE: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that you and Kamaile came up to testify for Maui Youth Bank
· .. {laughter} . .. Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Yeah, I just wanted to ask you,
Ryan, because Kamaile before you, you both go to Maui ... Maui Waena School and you
live in Kahului. What made you drive all the way or come all the way out to the west
side to testify?
MASTER BARTOLOME: Urn ...we had ... our staff-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I don't wanna put you on the spot, I know, but ...
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You came with the-MASTER BARTOLOME: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --a staff member? Oh, okay. Well, tbat's good to know.
Thank you, Ryan.
MASTER. BARTOLOME: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ryan. Sorry, not Mr. Joyo, but Mr. Yap.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
ALL: ... {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... {inaudible} . .. wrong school.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you .. .{laughter} . .. You guys did very good.
MASTER BARTOLOME: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, again, for being here. Hans Michel?
AUDIENCE: ... {applause and cheers} . ..
MR. MICHEL: ... Hello, Council Member, thauk you for coming to the west side tonight. I
don't know where to begin, but first something for the community. Uh... we need to
have better service with maintenance. And I have four pictures over here. Who wants to
have 'em? Who wants to be responsible for it because I believe it for you?
COUNCILMEMBER _ : ... {laughter} . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Michel provided the photographs to the Council Members.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: This is maintenance on ...
MR. MICHEL: This the entry to the Civic Center.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MR. MICHEL: They barely can get ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, we need you to-MR. MICHEL: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We need you to-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --testify, yeah-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
AUDIENCE: .. . (laughter) ..
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MR. MICHEL: You can see the pictures all block up. You barely could get a five-gallon bucket
through the, that's the storm drain as you enter through the Civic Center over here. It's
right on the bend, on the bottom. And the other one is the grass from Village of
Leialii ... towards the ocean. The contractor had it cleaned, nice and shiny. Now the
State .. .(end of tape, start 3A). .. who supposed to clean 'em, by the time they get
through, this could be ten feet tall. So I hope you can do something on that part. And the
next one is already by... Pioneer Mill or I would say Maui Electric substation on
Lahainaluna Road--and nobody wants to take the responsibility for clean the trees. In
other words, it hangs over the ... telephone line. Maui Electric when cut what's on their
way, but they will not cut for the telephone. And then ... that, there's one more picture,
yeah? That is in the back. That's the beginning of the flood channel from Doug White.
And that never gets clean. It's the opposite side of the highway, and it's all clogged up.
You can see that. If we have storm, you'll be... chock everything. You know? But I
would be glad if somebody will take care, that's why I leave you the pictures. Yeah?
That's for the community. Now mine, I talk to Mike. I don't know how much time we
have left. They have done the intake nicely and I can see, show this to Jo Anne Johnson
because she's concerned for that West Maui--what you call that, Municipal Intake
... (inaudible) . .. call 'em intake, yeah? Okay, hang on.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Michel provided the photographs to the Council Members.

MR. MICHEL: ... They done the job right. It looks good. It holds. It brings the water in. And
that's all, actually, what we need to have. At this moment. . .it's, it's working. I was
surprised they got it done in such a hurry because of the December flooding. But my
disappointment of. .. when we had the flooding, my road got busted. And Water
Department told me after we take care of the intake, we take care the road. Well, it's
already March. Easter passed. I haven't seen nothing what they going do on the road.
And the Superintendent tells me fixing road is not my job .
. . . So what I going do with you guys? I mean, I has problem like this year after year.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. MICHEL: What? Oh, one minute. Okay, no problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(laughter) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughtel). ..
MR. MICHEL: Anyway, for make a short story, a long story short, the budget for '09 does not
drive. Whatever you have over here in Kanaha Valley Improvement, yeah, before it was
Kanaha Valley Land Acquisition, and the contractor paper which I have from
19 ... 90 ... uh ... 4 does 110t drive with the paper. Every time they type out something
new, they leave something out or add something else. I mean, that's not how we're
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gonna do it. You know? So please check on that part. It has to be corrected right. Now
what you going do with the road? Are they gonna bring something or wait another six
months?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. .(laughter). ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Question-MR. MICHEL: ... No, no, no. I mean ... {inaudible} . .. said, it, it is the joke, you know?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: No, no, no.
MR. MICHEL: And it's in the contract where they say they supposed to maintain and they treat
me like kukae, you know, I mean, let, let's face it.
AUDIENCE: ., . {laughter} . ..
MR. MICHEL: I mean, I got washed away in 4, you remember that? And Alan Arakawa--hang,
hang on-COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: ... {laughter} . . ,
MR. MICHEL: --I give you that paper, you can, you can see 'em. You show the guys, you
know? Hang on.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: .. . (laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter),
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: That's not legal .. . (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (inaudible), ..
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Michel provided documents to the Council Members.

MR. MICHEL: , .. You have this one?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No.
MR. MICHEL: Okay. You can see that.
COUNCILMEMBER _ : Okay.
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MR. MICHEL: Oh, I got Jo Anne Johnson, okay, I take this one back then because I like this for
my record.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. MICHEL: That happens to be a County graded. And you when grade the road because
even Water Works could get in and out. By the way, when Victorino came to the Valley
for check the intake--and he has pictures, I hope he show 'em to you--he could not drive
up with his Mickey Mouse car. I had to pick 'em up with this truck.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter) . ..

MR. MICHEL: So, can you imagine if you cannot drive with a car, how you think my truck
takes all the beatings?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. MICHEL: Correct. .. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, sir?
MR. MICHEL: Tell 'em that. Now what is the problem? Okay, they... Water Department has
no road maintenance budget. We knew that they when cheat Maui Pine, they when cheat
Pioneer Mill, they went in and out of everybody's part of land, just for get the water.
When the water gets into the land, they forget about you.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. MICHEL: Okay. Sorry. So it's in the hand of Mr. Victorino because he took the place
from Michelle Anderson when she was on the mainland on the 19th of December. And
the letter came back tonight, Jo Anne Johnson brought me from the Water Department.
It's Victorino name right on top .
. . . So, can I keep the copy you when bring?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You gotta make me a copy.
MR. MICHEL: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. MICHEL: Okay. We do that. I appreciate for you time, but please do something because
you having, looking into a drought again. And by the way, this is the tape--remind all the
guys ... all those ... {inaudible} . .. September 13, it's all on tape, what they promise, what
they will do and have done nothing. Two years went by and here ...
. . . this is the back, the best part right here. All in writing, and it says Fiscal Year budget,
yeah, has three more months to do the job and the budget is over. They haven't done
nothing yet. How can they collect a paycheck every two weeks and do nothing? I mean,
you people have to ...1 don't know-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. MICHEL: --what you would do with 'em, shake 'em up or fire 'em or give 'em more
money or whatever they need, but nothing gets done. Yeah?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Michels [sic}.
MR. MICHEL: Thank you very much. I hope we have more time next time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Just for your information, we are in the process of reviewing the
Department of Water Supply's budget. I, and I know Member Johnson has some, a few
questions for the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Tomorrow.
MR. MICHEL: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do it tomorrow morning. In fact, all day tomorrow we do have
the Water Supply Department in regards to their budget review, strictly capital
improvement projects. So I'm sure Member Johnson will be asking-MR. MICHEL: .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --the right questions.
MR. MICHEL: I understand. I appreciate because remember, the amendments I have when they
said it's for the year, and they took the money away. You remember? We all, we all
have it on the tape. So you know, I keep track. That's why. And I appreciate for you
guys came and thank you for the extra time, yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.

- 69-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of tHaui

March 27, 2008

MR. MICHEL: And I hope I see you soon with a good report. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Michels [sic). Oh, Mr. Michels [sic} you, you do
have a question here. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Well, as far as the ... the water
intake, I'll leave that with the Water Resources Committee, with Member Victorino.
MR. MICHEL: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And as far as the trimming of trees, the County
.. .{inaudible} . .. division...restricted from trimming trees next to utilities. They are
told they cannot trim the trees just because of the hazard. And the utility company is the
respousible agency to trim those lines. So we will find out about--you said Maui Electric
trimmed some, but the telephone company didn't?
MR. MICHEL: Correct. And, and all these lines are going up Lahainaluna-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. I recognize the area-MR. MICHEL: ... {inaudible} . .. Intermediate and Princess Nahinahina [sic} plus the entire ...
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Okay. We, we, wewill-MR. MICHEL: ... mauka-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --check with the utility company. As far as the drainage,
yeah .. . (inaudible). .. because I used to be in charge of Lahaina, and now it's in charge
by a very good... person. This area was put in, was put in for Leialii. And of course, it
wasn't called Leialii, you know before it became Hawaiian Homes ... {inaudible} . .. but
there's always a question of jurisdiction whether this drainage ...whether it's a part of the
State jurisdiction or the County. So what I'll do is I'll go and ask our Engineering and
our Land Agent who actually owns this property as far as the responsibility of the
drainage 'cause the drainage does end at the State Highway, which becomes a State
Highway's responsibility. And some of, and the other drainage you had the picture of,
we also have to find out the property ownership of that drainage area because lots of this,
you know, the State ... {inaudible} . .. has a, has a really wide corridor that goes through
Lahaina. Lot of the property falls into State Highway's jurisdiction. But I will find all
this out and I'll try get back, I'll report to you.
MR. MICHEL: I appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay ... (inaudible) . ..
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MR. MICHEL: ... (inaudible) . .. before we get the next big rain, yeah? .. . (laughter). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Michels [sic].
MR. MICHEL: Thank you very much .. .(laughter) . .. Thank you. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, the next testifier is Virginia Angel, followed by Zeke Kalua.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Virginia had to leave.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Virginia is not here. Zeke?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ... (inaudible) . ..
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Kalua approached the podium.

MR. KALUA: ... Chair, can I answer a question before I start?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Answer a question ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MR. KALUA: For Councilmember Medeiros--those trees are actually growing out of the
MECO subplant at the bottom of Lahainaluna.
And when I worked in the
Administration, I contacted a site construction supervisor in charge of their budget, and
he said that even though it'll only cost 1,000 dollars to trim the trees, if it's not budgeted
and approved to the PUC, they won't do it. And the concern that, that Mr. Michel has
about those trees in particular is because all eight of them grow through every
line--power, cable, internet, you name it--that goes along the sidewalk. So, and they also
get hit by trash trucks going up the road. So that was his concern.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. KALUA: Good evening, Chair Pontanilla, Members of the Budget. .. and Council
Members. I'm Ezekiela Kalua, Executive Director for the West Maui Taxpayers
Association. Thank you for the opportunity to speak and being here tonight. I know it's
late. I'm gonna try and be very brief and also very general. Urn... we want you to
approve everything in the budget--
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AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. KALUA: --that goes without ... (laughter) . .. saying. We know that there's a lot of
challenges all over the County and we know it's gonna be difficult. We don't envy you
by any means, but we will work hard with you and the Administration to make it happen.
The Villager bus route, we can approve one more bus route to an already successful
system, or we can find 100 million dollars to make ADA sidewalks all throughout
Lahainaluna and land acquisition. I tbink the... tbe Villager bus route is way better.
Let's try that first. And with 800 people signing on a petition, it's gonna succeed. It's
gonna succeed. As soon as we added the Honokowai one back, look what happened over
there--ridership went up almost 8,000 a month. And that's only Honokowai. So, please
approve that as soon as you can. Also, the 80,000 dollars acquisition for the heritage
parkway through Wahikuli. Very important. You know, we could probably even utilize
that during the marathon and takes the people off the side of the highway. You know
what I mean? Ideas. Urn...there's an audacity behind ever cutting Police and Fire
budget, behind ever doing that. And you know what, our firefighters, especially on this
side of the island, work, I believe, the hardest in all of Maui County. And 1'll say that
with conviction because look at everything that they fight every year. Rains in
December, we fight fires from March all the way to December. You know, the need for
improving the capacity lines has been there for years. We need to do it. The need for
growth of this station? They've already outgrown it. Their equipment's on the access
road on the side of the station. The need for a station in Olowalu? We gotta have it. Pull
all of our firefighter apparatus from Kahului, Kihei, and Upcountry to fight a West Maui
fire makes no sense. But look what happened a year or two ago--500 acres went up in
Kaupo a day after they stopped fighting this fire. You know we... gotta put this
infrastructure in. Everybody can go along the years and say, oh, well, they should have
done it, they should have done it, you could have done it. .. you know, we can do that for
ten more years. But the bottom line is when these guys out there risking their
lives--Police and Fire--you know, they gotta have the resources. Same thing with like
MEO, the skate park, the Boys and Girls Club, Keiki Kokua--the resources that we have
to put out there for the community is what's gonna make this community the best. And
even though we demand a lot for West Maui, it's not because we feel we generate the
lion's share .. .(laughter) . .. It's because if we're gonna live with being voted the best
island in the world, we should damn well show that we're best island in the world.
Bottom line. You know, you've got a community of people willing to support
you ... probably one of the hardest House Representatives that ever worked for this
District, Angus McKelvey, behind you on the State level. And all of you here are
committed, too ... 'cause you're still here. So please support everything that you can.
Know that we're gonna bring fire to the Administration to make sure it goes through.
And before I finish, I wanna apologize to you and everybody in here 'cause I need to go
off the subject for something very important to me. I am alumni of the graduating class
of 1994 Molokai High School. And the impact that the Ranch is gonna do to this island
is gonna be devastating. Back in the early, in the late '80s, the State and employees here
on Maui subsidized the ferry for people to come over here and work. And it sustained
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growth on the island. It fed families. It helped people pay mortgages. It helped in every
way possible. If the island refuses to do cruise ships, then please help do what you can to
help bring that incentive back. No, I don't speak on ... on behalf of my friends, but my
family . .. my nieces, my nephews, my uncle, my aunty, my cousins--they all live on that
island. And even though I live here, that's my home and it always will be. Please do
what you can. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Mateo?

Thank you, Zeke.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. And just to comment on your
last comments. At this particular point in time, the County is . .. doing something. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. Thank you, Zeke.
AUDIENCE: .. . (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Stacie Thorlakson ... followed by Stacey Moniz .
. . . Oh... first Stacie is not here. Stacey Moniz ... followed by Carole Vida.
MS. MONIZ: Good evening. Thank you all so much. My name is Stacey Moniz. I'm the
executive Director for Women Helping Women...Maui's domestic violence shelter and
programs. We've been serving Maui for the last 30 years and the island of Lanai for
about 10 years. And I'm here tonight, I don't live in Lahaina either, but I'm here because
a group of concerned West Maui citizens got together about three or four years ago and
created the West Maui Domestic Violence Task Force, of which
Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson is a member. So, thank you for that. As a result of
their work, they found that we needed to have a center on this side of the island that
provided services because of the long distance and the ... and because it's an issue of
safety, domestic violence. And so what we did was we wrote a grant to the State
Legislature. And about two years ago, we opened the West Maui center. And we've
been opened Monday, Wednesday, and Friday from ... you know, we're only part-time
here because that's what we can afford. And so we kind of started that way on Lanai as
well. And once you open a place and people start to hear about your services, we got, we
get more and more busy. So, I. .. you know, we also get a line item--Women Helping
Women does for our general operating expenses, which we're really grateful for. And I
had asked the Mayor for 190,000 dollars this year. And what was put into the budget was
what we got last year, which was 165,000. I'm asking that we get the full 190 so that we
can bring West Maui to fulltime. That's part of our goal. We've been training a second
staff person to take on some responsibilities. And I just, you know, it's really important
that you know that this was really a.. ,request from this community to create this center.
We're able to do restraining orders on this side. We created legislation, well, we got the
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Chief Justice of the State Supreme Court to make a... a special. .. pilot project so that we
can fax restraining orders from this side so folks don't have to drive all the way to
Wailnku to file their restraining order. So it's really made a huge impact in terms of
bringing safety to victims of domestic violence on this side of the island.
· .. I wanted to also thank you for the rental assistance program. Women Helping
Women is one of the agencies, along with MEO and Ka Hale A Ke Ola and the Family
Life Center who are fortunate enough to have a rental assistance fund. And 1'd really like
to encourage you to continue to fund that. We've been able to help victims of domestic
violence on all three islands in our County with rental assistance, deposits and subsidies.
So I would really appreciate if you'd keep that. And I would ask if you can put
utility... assistance in with rental assistance. That's one of the big, big needs for a lot of
the ... the women and families that we're working with.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. MONIZ: So I do wauna thank you again for your support and ...
· .. and ask you to support the West Maui center. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Stacey?
· .. Seeing none, thank you again. Carole Vida... followed by Tamara Paltin.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Vida approached the podium.

MS. VIDA: ... Aloha mai kakou. Thank you for the opportunity to testify tonight. I am an
employee of MEO, but I am here tonight testifying for my ohana that receives services
through MEO. My grandchild is a... student at our Kahi Kamalii, the early childhood
services. And without these services, my son and his girlfriend would not be able to
continue work and be productive members of our community. So I'd like to thank you
for past services and funding for MEO, all of our programs ... but especially for our early
childhood services .
... Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier at this time?
· .. Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. VIDA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... Tamara Pallin, followed by CJ Ancheta.
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MS. PALTIN: ... Aloha... Council Members. Thank you for coming out to Lahaina to take
testimony. I really appreciate it. My name is Tamara Paltin, and I first have a request on
behalf of the Save Honolua Coalition ... we really appreciate last year that you allocated a
million dollars for the Open Space Fund and we'd just like to request that you in, reinsert
the proviso to keep that same million dollars from last year alive ... for the future
acquisition of Honolua. We're in the process of the final filing for our 501(c)(3) and
we're in negotiations right now, going on. Urn ...that's all I have for the Save Honolua.
The rest of my testimony is on behalf of myself.
· .. I live on the lower road ... kind of right in front where the road is falling into the
ocean and I was just hoping that that million dollars for the lower road is for that portion
'cause I know of at least like seven small children that live near there. And it's real
dangerous. There's a stoplight and a blinking sign, but plenty cars don't listen, they just
speed and go right on to the other side of the road. And I'm always worried like .. .I'm
gonna have to wake up in the middle of the night and go do something to help one
accident or something. The other thing I was, last year. . .I requested for a lifeguard at
Launiupoko. I think that's still kind of an important thing. I know of at least one
drowning this past year and I would like to think if we were there maybe we could have
prevent it. Also we have AEDs, you know if someone ... like this past year,
someone ... dropped dead in front of our tower at Flemings. And because we had a AED,
we could bring 'em back to life. So .. .I think, I mean, even ifit's not that big ofa break
at Launiupoko, it would, it would be really benefit to the community to have lifeguards
there because the medics are kind of far away and ifit's during school-time traffic ... they
would probably be dead if they have a heart attack there right now. Urn ...
· . . also, I would ask that you support the reorganization of the Ocean Safety
section... and take us out of Parks and Recreation. Although we work at the parks, we're
kind of more like emergency services. We cannot strike or anything. We're there all the
time. We don't take holidays or weekends off. So it's kind of, I mean, we do lifesaving
stuff or first-responders. It just makes more sense. The rest of the State is going that
way--to emergency service, the rest of the country. And Maui, we don't wanna be left
behind. Urn ...
· .. one other thing is I think the west side deserves like a recycling center. We have two
redemption centers, which is cool. But. . .like just recently, the Olowalu station was
closed for eight weeks. And ... so it makes it real hard, you know, if you wanna try be
sustainable and recycle. Where are we going take our stuff? Urn ... or if you cannot find
a place, maybe curbside recycling. I think a lot of people would support that if you
cannot find one place on West Maui. Also, I notice in the budget that you have money
for the wastewater and ... to make it more-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
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MS. PALTIN: --reclaimed. And I was just hoping that you, we could move away from the
injection wells. This is the year of the reef, and it kind of just. . .1 don't have the
scientific facts, but the invasive algae is kind of smothering the reefs. And if we could
move away from injection wells, I would appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you.
Member Medeiros?

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Ms. Pallin. I wanted
to ask you what's the location of the road conditions you describe on Lower Honoapiilani
Road? Where, where are you talking about-MS. PALTIN: .. . (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --'cause that's a long road. Where?
MS. PALTIN: 4790 is my house. And actually where there's only one lane is about 4780.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Give me a landmark in the area or. .. a condo or ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. KALUA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. PALTIN: The Aluli's house.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right by the .. .(inaudible). ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh. Okay.
MR. KALUA, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: By the bay? Okay. Ub... next is ...
. . . Do you know if the Ocean Safety Division has negotiated any kind of talks with
Parks and Recreations to, you know, see if they would consider. .. placing or. .. placing
your, the agency with... like other jurisdictions, either with the Fire Department
or. .. mostly there?
MS. PALTIN: It's my understanding that, I just spoke to our. .. Supervisor, Archie Kalepa, this,
tonight, I think he had to leave 'cause he have twins. But he had spoken to the Fire
Chief, but we're under the impression that the Director is not really in favor of it. She
would, their Department would probably lose 1.2 million. But it's not about recreation.
It's about emergency services. And ... I'm not, I mean, I don't wauna say anything about
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the Parks and Recreation, but I'm not real stoked at the professionalism and their ability
to provide to us things that we need. I think it's really irresponsible that we have to guess
whether our jet skis going run, you know. It's our, our lives when we go out in high surf.
I think we should have new equipment at least every other year instead of running like
six-, seven-year-old jet skis. People with the Aloha Jet Watersports have newer jet skis
than us. You know? And so it's just kind of scary.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter) . .. Okay. I, I just would, you know,
encourage you to continue your talk, talks with the Parks and Recreations. But also you
may have to renew your talks with the Fire Department because they have a new Chief.
Okay? Mahalo for your testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? Thank
you. CJ Ancheta?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't see him.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I don't see him.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Greg Howeth?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Joe Pluta?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Pluta approached the podium.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... He's here.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Take your time.
COUNCILMEMBER _ : ... (laughter) . ..
MR. PLUTA: Hello. Thanks ... Council Members, Council Chair Pontanilla and Council
Members. Thank you very much for coming to West Maui, taking this time. 1. .. agree
with our Executive Director, Zeke Kalua of West Maui Taxpayers. Everything he says,
1. .. ask that you please don't cut anything from the West Maui budget. Please fund
everything that has been asked for. .. and ... MEO and the increase things for
the ... children... everything that has been testified here today. And I just wanna respect
you and acknowledge you for coming here tonight and spending the time. And thank you
very much. And I appreciate what I heard about Molokai, too, 'cause that was something
else I wanted to bring up. Thank you.
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COUNCTLMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. PLUTA: That's it.
CHAIR PONTANTLLA: ... Thank you, Joe. That was quick. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you, again .
. . . The next testifier is Toni Coles [sic).
... Not here? Bruce Efer? Oh, Erfer. I'm sorry.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Erfer approached the podium.

MR. ERFER: ... I actually have some nice things to say tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeal
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: .. . (laughter). ..
MR. ERFER: I was very critical of the transit department when it began. I felt that they didn't
hire anyone with experience. The naming of the bus system was ridiculous. Nobody
understood what it meant. .. unless you knew what it meant.
The other day,
I. .. purposely took the bus from Whaler's Village and went all over the County. And I
was extremely impressed. I am impressed with the ... schedules where you get off one
bus, the next bus is there to go to the next place. I, I couldn't be more impressed. The
buses were basically two-thirds full. They're obviously new. They're air conditioned.
They're comfortable. The people were very happy... everything was terrific so I have
something nice to say. I, I think you should continue funding it. Somebody's doing a
good job. I, I, I couldn't be more impressed. And it's hard to impress me, so ...
AUDIENCE: .. . {laughter} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .{inaudible} . .. good.
MR. ERFER: Okay. Urn ... next is regarding the issue of needing a sidewalk along Puukolii.
This is not particularly the place to come and, and ask for sidewalks. But there's no other
place to come. And we've been doing this for a number of years. It's, it's hard and
somebody mentioned that some of the stories we hear of needing foster care and
all. .. we're talking about a sidewalk. It's not the same. It doesn't have the emotional . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Curb appeal.
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MR. ERFER: Yeah, right. Curb appeal.
COUNClLMEMBER BALSA: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... (laughter). ..
MR. ERFER: Very good.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(laughter). ..
MR. ERFER: But. . .25 years ago, the County make a mistake and didn't make the developer
put in a sidewalk. And we're talking about a road that feeds 800 residences and is the
only... way down to the ... the, the highway. When I walk down to Whaler's Village to
get the bus, I walked on private property rather than down the street. You can't walk
down this street without having to move away be ... from vehicles, from trucks. The
County allowed this new suhdivision, Lanikeha, to be built, which is another
lOO-and-some houses where all the trucks are accessing from Puukolii because there's no
bypass and there was supposed to be another road. There's no other road. So ...Puukolii
gets all the big trucks--the cement trucks, gravel trucks, everything. And there's no
sidewalk. And the County does own the easement. There's no, no ownership issue here
on that part. The easement is owned by the County. There's room. Public Works has
said that they would ... review the possibility of--I'm reading--of implementing a future
sidewalk on the County's portion of Puukolii Road. But to get somebody to do it, how
do you do it? So that's why we're here. And I, I appreciate you listening. And... thank
you for coming.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANlLLA: Thank you, Bruce. Members, any questions for the testifier? One
question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, thank you for your testimony this evening. The
Puukolii Road sidewalk, you talking on the north-side of the road or the south side?
MR. ERFER: South side.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: South side?
MR. ERFER: The north, the north side is not owned by the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct. And that's always been a jurisdictional thing
because even part ofthe road doesn't belong to the County.
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MR. ERFER: I, I know more about this than anybody .. .(laughter) . .. probably.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well .. .I, I was in charge of Lahaina for 20 years.
MR. ERFER: Well, we .. .(laughter) . .. I don't know if we should hold that against you.
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. . (laughter). ..
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: But, yeah, there, there's always ajurisdictional ...
MR. ERFER: But this part is certainly-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: ... kind of question.
MR. ERFER: --owned by the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ERFER: Okay? I mean-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ERFER: --there's ... (inaudible due to interruption)-COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then, the, the other part about the Transportation
Department, I'm glad you are very satisfied with it now. But .. you know, not hiring
qualified people, I have to defend the Director, not because he has the same name as I
do-MR. ERFER: No, no-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --but-MR. ERFER: --I'm talking about the prior Director.
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay, you didn't say that
MR. ERFER: What, let, let me-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. ERFER: When we voted for a Department of Transportation--
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. ERFER: --I expected that they would hire a transportation expert.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right.
MR. ERFER: Not an air conditioning engineer-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
MR. ERFER: --that they hired. He was-COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh ...
MR. ERFER: --an air conditioning engineer. That was his background.
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, we just started the Department last July.
COUNClLMEMBER JOHNSON: No, no, no-MR. ERFER: No, we didn't.
COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You talking about transit or transportation?
MR. ERFER: I, I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Erfer, he doesn't know that there was somebody ... (end of
tape, start 3B) . ..
MR. ERFER: It's another gentleman. 1. .. since 1, they-COUNClLMEMBER JOHNSON: Kyle Ginoza.
MR. ERFER: Kyle-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. ERFER: Okay.
COUNClLMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. ERFER: But, no, the Department of Transportation was-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, yes, right.
MR. ERFER: --voted in ... four or five years ago, right?
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. ERFER: ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
.. .(laughter) . ..

Okay, you're talking about the other Director

MR. ERFER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you.
MR. ERFER: 1. .. okay. I don't know 'em personally, but ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you ... Member Medeiros. Thank you, Bruce. Okay... the next
testifier is Marty Wynn.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Glenn Manucci? Manucci.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Manucd approached the podium.

MR. MANUCCI: ... Good evening. I'll keep this short since everyone's getting a little tired.
But I'm also here to support or. .. ask for, plea, or beg for the sidewalk on Puukolii. I
walk every day. And I, I also cut across private property to avoid not getting hit. It, it's a
safety issue--someone will get killed or seriously injured on that road. I, I'm surprised it
hasn't happened yet. I still see some people down...walking on that road and I try to
direct them across the private property which r know will be a problem soon. So please
let's try to do something with this. Thauk you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. M embers, any question for the testifier? If not, thank you
again for being here. Jeri ... Manueci?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. . (laughter). ..
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NOTE:

Pause while Ms, MallUcci approached the podium.

MS. MANUCCI: ... Hello. Good evening. I'm Jeri Manucci, live in Kaanapali Hillside with
my husband and Bruce Erfer. Not in the same house, but. .. anyway, we, I am also here
to implore for the sidewalk. We've lived here 13 years, and 13 years ago it was blissful
to walk down to the beach every morning and now you literally take your life in your
hands. It's quite ... you know, terror-strieken because the, it is a thoroughfare. All of the
developments--I mean, we're in the Hillside which is the oldest community, but there's
the ...Masters is below us, and all of the gated communities that--they have access to use
some of the ways out, but we don't have access to their gated communities, so we have
their traffic and our traffic. And it's big trucks, gravel trucks, carp ... all the carpenters
and construction people. And they terribly violate the speed limit, which makes it even
more precarious. So a sidewalk on that south side would be just marvelous because
there's children walk up and down. We have ... people have visitors that don't know that
it's so dangerous. And you just feel for them because they are, you know, walking with
traffic behind them and not even realizing how fast these people come up and down the
road. So I implore. As Bruce said, we're, we know there's the WIC programs and the
foster people that do wonderful things, but this is also for people that live here. You
know, you wanna have a quality of life and a safe life. And we appreciate your time and
would really appreciate a sidewalk. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you very much. Steven Ashfield?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... There he is.
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Ashfield approached the podium.

MR. ASHFIELD: ... Good evening, I'm Steve Ashfield. I'm here to ask you to do nothing
about part of the budget.
ALL: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. ASHFIELD: The hourly rates that are put forth for the Parks Department in the Mayor's
Budget, I'm asking you to take 'em out and keep what we have right now. To give you a
background, when I first started here, the hourly rate for this place was 330 dollars. I
mean, not "hourly", but the "rate"; and 400 dollars for custodial; and 25 dollars for key.
Linda Lingle lowered it to 300. Kimo Apana lowered it to 80, 125, and 25 where it is
today. Your raising sewer rates, garbage rates, aud ... water rates--these are all needed.
We need the water because our water is still the cheapest in the Hawaiian islands.
Rubbish ... we have to make sure that our landfill still works. And sewerage, of course
we have to do our infrastructure which is really falling apart. But by raising the gym
rates and Civic Center rates, all we're doing is hitting the same people. Now if a party
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comes in here, it's 80 dollars. If it goes to an hourly rate, it's gonna be 300 dollars for
that same person. That's a 250 percent increase. If they're a Type V, whicb is a for
profit-making entity, it's only 50 percent increase. I don't understand that Also,
County-sponsored events, cosponsored events cost more with the new thing than... than
they do if, if it was a non-cosponsored event The idea of a hourly rate is to get more
people to use the facilities. But the people who use them now want more time to decorate
and clean up than we can give 'ern anyway. And this isn't gonna stop 'ern. What's
gonna happen? They're gonna go to the beaches. And our beaches right now are overly
crowded on weekends--ifyou ever came to West Maui. At least we get two people not
using the beaches because they're here. Now, right now we don't charge for leagues
using our facilities. We're gonna make them pay. Which is gonna make them corne and
be County leagues, which is gonna mean we're gonna need more people to work and
more equipment So our budget's gonna have to go up. It's not gonna decrease .
. . . We also have the use of our amphitheater in the back. We have ten bands that go
back there, we don't charge now, which we're gonna have to charge. These bands now
get jobs and some of them don't come back anymore because now they're getting really
important Gym usage--that's another one. We have a lot of people that use our gym. I
just had some people just come and wanted to shoot a round. Tourist--because this is
where the Maui Invitational is played, and we get to play on their floor. We wanna
charge them. Then, we wanna charge them 7 dollars an hour. But if we tum on the air
conditioner, we wanna charge them 12. Five dollars an hour. When I flip that switch to
tum on the air conditioner, it cost 185 dollars. If I'm gonna be up there for 2 hours, I'd
damn well want the air conditioning on. It cost me 10 bucks more than ... cost me
24 dollars instead of 14. It cost the County 185. Doesn't make any sense. Our summer
basketball is cosponsored. They're gonna have to play.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. ASHFIELD: Teams come from all over the place ... to play in our summer classic.
Also ... what I'm asking for is to just stop this from coming through. And then I'm gonna
also ask that--I always ask for every year--we need a soccer field and we need a rugby
field. When somebody comes and gives us land, make sure it fits at least those two
things. I know in recreation we always like to see people smiling, but I think with the
new ... rate structure, we're only gonna see frowns. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Memberlohnson?

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Steve, you make some really good points. Were, were you
or any ofthe other Department personnel consulted in developing these kinds of rates?
MR. ASHFIELD: Yes, I, I put my two cents in. And they did do one thing that I said--they
raised the rate ... what it was gonna be for a craft fair to corne here, the rate was actually
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gonna go down . .. on the hourly rate. But they raised it up, so now at least we're gonna
get 1,200 dollars instead of 800 dollars. So that was the only thing. But I just said I
don't think the hourly rates would work because it just. . .I mean ...they just wanna be
like the mainland and other places. And unfortunately, I. . .I don't think Maui's ready for
that yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are you able to provide the information, you know, either to
me or to Member Victorino?
MR. ASHFIELD: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because I'm not gonna be able to remember and my
computer ran out of juice so ... {laughter} . .. But I really appreciate you know-MR. ASHFIELD: I will email any, any ... {inaudible due to interruption}-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That would be great because it's very important that we
understand when we're looking at the rates and fees. Thanks very much, Steve.
MR. ASHFIELD: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
... Thank you, again. Kimokeo Kapalahulehua [sic]?
... Kapahulehua.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Council [sic] Chairman Pontanilla, Council Members, my name is
Kimokeo Kapahulehua. I have several items that I wanna talk to you about. The first
item, which is our water. Uh.. .I'm the President of Honokohau Restoration Ohana. We
have an agreement or a general. .. gentlemen's understanding about the water that we
have in the valley. And you have a partnership with Maui Land and Pine. So as the
President, we request that we get something from you or we're gonna send you a letter so
we understand what is our water usage in, in the valley. We've gone there, to the
building for actually water meters, and we're not able to get them at this time. So we're
just asking you about that. Honokohau Valley, as well as you know, did not have all the
other services the community have. So ...we, we'll be sending the letters to you and we
would like you as the Water Resource Committee, Mr. Victorino, to future planning to
consider us and let us know what's going on. We thank you for that. Secondly, I wanna
tell you that we support Community Work Day. Community Work Day on the west side
just recently did... a Olowalu cleanup, gathering 32 derelict cars, a lot of metal and more
than 80 volunteers showing up at Olowalu for the c1eanup--which is Olowalu mauka and
Olowalu makai. So we ask you to support the budget they have for Community Work
Day. And just recently, our Executive Director, Jan Dapitan, was Chair for the State ... of
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what they call to Keep Hawaii Beautiful. Councilmember Victorino and myself was able
to attend that. In this thing, you should know that. .. they brought in Judge Potter from
Tennessee. And we will be having, shortly, a develop in the State of Hawaii that we call
a... Environmental Court. So the Drug Court has its day. The Environmental Court will
have its day here in the State--meaning that some of these derelict cars that you see
around is, the people have to come to court now. So we ask you to continue to support
the Community Work Day program. And we see that you have a budget in there, and we
thank you for that. And thirdly, I wanna talk to you about the B.E.S.T. program. We're
one of the supporters of the B.E.S.T. Program, meaning that the B.E.S.T. program has
8... 8 sessions for these inmates that comes out in education, culture, and environment.
And with the... with the help ofMEO and the staff of the ... Maui Correctional Facilities,
we're able to do this program outside of the facilities in, intermingling them with their
families again as they go out and doing environment and culture protocol. So we
definitely seen the finished product tonight. And not only him, but last program that we
did, we had 20 inmates--that include the women and the men. And there were 17
support, other inmates who went through the B.E.S.T. program that showed up their
support with their families. And he did explain to you how it helped them out. So I ask
you to support that.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: My last, my last, my last one that I, I like to take a, a really short time
is the fire and the public safety. On the west, you sbowing a, a renovation on, on the, on
the Fire Department. We wanna tell you that we support that, but we would like to ask
you to support more in the long-range plan to get more Departments out here. Because
their work is from Maalaea to Honokohau. And that's a lot for them to eover. And I
wanna support that. And, and we wanted to answer. .. answer one of your question,
Councilman Medeiros, that the Ocean Safety really belongs in Public Safety. We've had
discussions with the new Fire Chief, and we will get that. .. with you, and that he does
support this program. And now the question you asked ... and if we developing, what's
happening with the Director in... Parks and Recreation, the, what the person brought up
was a general information. So that is definitely a... an automatic situation with the
Director in Parks and Rec, in releasing them to Ocean Safety. I just wanted to tell you as
Council Members, the other counties have Ocean Safety in the Fire and, department. So
we ask you to help us move the Ocean Safety in there. And in the Ocean Safety,
Launiupoko was left out in the Budget. We want Launiupoko back. And the last of all,
in Makena was reported that the County did they part. You need to push the State to do
their part-MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: --with our Ocean Safety. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Kimokeo. Members, any questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you, again. Linda-AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Linda Millar. .. Vanpoucke?
MS. MILLAR-VANPOUCKE: . . . My name is Linda Millar-Vanpoucke.
a...Vanpolka .. . (laughter) . .. I'm a relatively--

And I'm

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. MILLAR-VANPOUCKE: --new member of the West Maui Task Force ... Women Helping
Women. And ... I'm really impressed with these, these women and the work that they do.
And I'm very impressed with this new shelter over in Lahaina.
· .. My heart just really goes out to any woman who might have the courage to call for
help there ... and to think that they might get an answering service just breaks my heart.
· .. So ...1 know that they're only open for three days a week right now. They're
allocated 165,000 dollars and they're asking for the 25,000 more to, so they can stay open
for the five days.
· .. And I, I would really, really like to see them have that money. I think they're doing
a, a great service. And... thank you very much for listening to me.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. Seeing none, thank you for being here.
· .. Amos Lonokailua-Hewitt?
NOTE:

Pause while Mr. Lonokailua-Hewitt approached the podium.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... You guys wanna go together?
· .. Cornelio Bancaco. I hope I got that name right .. .(laughter) . ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(inaudible). ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. LONOKAILUA-HEWITT:
Aloha, Members of the Council. My name is
Amos Lonokailua-Hewitt. I'm a newly promoted Captain assigned to Lahaina station on
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the ladder truck. Uh .. .I ask for your continued support with MFD's proposed budget,
specifically two programs. The first one is Train the Trainer, which is the ... using those
funds to train personnel to become trainers. Urn ...
· .. The training bureau, at this time ... has been taxed with training the Department with
the new, I guess more disciplines and more certifications, more recertifications,
more ... new recruits. And...what's happened is the Captains are left to scramble ...to
fend for themselves ... doing our own research and looking for training...networking
with Captains across the states and stufflike that. And what that does is we're coming up
with our own training...which doesn't provide consistency throughout the, the
Department, which in tum it becomes a safety concern for not only the firefighters, but
the pUblic. So the Trainer, the Trainer program will provide that consistency.
· .. The second program is the RIT program. Currently, we don't have a RIT program,
which is a Rapid Intervention Team. Ub ... and I believe those funds will be used for the
facilities to be able to conduct different training scenarios, hands-on training, and more
realistic scenarios ...where also firefighters can practice their survival skills.
· .. Like I said, the Captains are .. .like myself for instance, we, we use the, this facility to
set up scenarios for different types of training. And the RIT program would provide that
for us--something more ...
· .. fit for the types of calls we'll be going to. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. Seeing none, thank you, again.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Next testifier, Captain Cornelio Bancaco.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. . (inaudible). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
MR. BANCACO: Budget Chair and Council Members, thank you for being, you know, come,
making it over this side. I don't know how new it is, but we really appreciate it. I'm a
lifelong resident of West Maui. Started out with the Lahaina Fire Station and did the full
rounds, even across to Lanai.
· .. But I'm here today, tonight. .. about, to thank you for all your hard work in, in past
budgets ... you know, to, to improve our living conditions and public safety for our
community. It's ever-changing ... fast-changing community we live in. So we all gotta
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adjust and adapt and make do with what we got and come to you guys every, , ,every
year. , ,even more, more often, but you know for, for your help, And tonight, I basically
here for ask. , ,that all of you, all of you support our CIP Budget this year, specifically for
West Maui community in regards to fire and rescue emergency services, The facility is
what we, is in our request. We" ,the Lahaina Fire Station is a 34-year-old facility,
Originally, it was, it housed six firefighters" ,you know, one officers and fire,
firefighters, one truck. And" ,we, today we've expanded to two fire companies with 10
firefighters on, on a shift. , ,and we work, we do work a 24-hour shift and a 56-hour a
week work week. Just to, , ,make everybody aware,
, , , Today, we have an engine company and a ladder company with, like I say, 10
firefighters on the ships at any given time, We also acquired a utility truck and a rescue
boat over. , ,over time, Uh",
, , , and at this time, the utility truck is partly parked in the weather, uh, partially, some of
the time, And also our rescue boat sticks out of the station,
, , , We anticipate having a new rescue boat that's, , ,under sea trials at this, right now and
is due to be delivered in the next couple months,
, , , And the next piece of equipment that, , ,
, , , I think maybe Kyle Farm can come up and elaborate on our. , ,our tanker truck that
we anticipate having,
MS, WILLENBRINK: Three minutes,
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, can you identify yourself, please? Come forward,
NOTE:

Pause.

MR. FARM: .. , My name is Kyle Farm. I'm a Firefighter III and I drive the engine here in
Lahaina. I'd just like to offer testimony in support of my Captain, Cornelio Bancaco,
Basically, what we asking for for the CIP Budget is a, it's a budget to expand the station
to address the, , ,the overcrowded needs of, of , ,of our station, We basically outgrew it
and we doubled in size to what the, normally the, the station was designed for, A big part
of what we're asking for is, is an extension that would house a tanker truck. Everybody
here is familiar with, , ,the, the, , ,the intense fire seasons we had in the past couple years,
especially on this side, We rely heavily on the Public Works' tankers,
, , , When we have any large fires, the next, the first available tanker is, , .is in Kahului,
which is about half-an-hour away, The plan is, is to get. , ,we're gonna get one of our
used tanker trucks, from Lanai I believe, that's still the plan, They fall into a rural
district, you know as you know, and I think they qualify for a brand new brush tanker

- 89 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 27, 2008

truck. We're gonna get an old one. And right now we actually, we'll take anything. But
the problem is, is we don't have any place to house this truck. And a big part of the, the
expansion is, is a plan to, to make a facility to house the rescue boat and the tanker truck.
If, if we're able to have the tanker, there's many fires that I've seen personally that could
have been minimized, you know. And, and a lot of the problem is is we just don't have
water, cnough water to contain the fire when we initially get there. As you know, since
the closing of Pioneer Mill, there's so much open land now. And there's just more and
more open land. And...we have people living in many rural districts. So we, you know,
we cross our fingers and we pray that, we, we hope that a tanker can come fast enough
and, and we, we save our water until we absolutely need it. But it would greatly enhance
our fire fighting capabilities, you know, given the tanker truck and given a facility to
house it properly. I think in future budgets, yeah, I think we're gonna ask for a brand
new truck and then... and also a pennanent driver to man the truck. But for right now, I
think none of that can happen unless we can have a facility to house it. Uh ...
. . . that's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Johnson?

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the Department?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, in, and, and I know that you guys usually or somehody
in the Department makes a recommendation when any issues come before the Planning
Commission. And recently, there were many, many units approved at North Beach for
timeshares, which of course are high-rise. Do you guys have any capability to fight those
high-rise fires, and have you asked any, for any specialized equipment from the people
that will be creating that impact?
MR. BANCACO: ... Well, Jo Anne, that, that is a whole different subject. And ... maybe I can
basically give an idea to, you know, in response to your question. Manpower-wise, we
are way understaffed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. BANCACO: Realistically. What is that, a 12-story hotel or. .. we are way understaffed
manpower-wise. We anticipate ... being, having our hands full. You know but with
the... _ _ protections that, that's required, we pray that it's working right and we, we
going rely on that and do what we can with, with our resources. We are ...we are way
below minimum.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and-MR. FARM: If! can add-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Sure, absolutely.
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MR. FARM: --something to support that? You know, one thing 1, 1, 1 can comment on is what
I've seen is the improvement with our Fire Prevention Bureau. With those facilities there
at North Beach in, specifically... things are different now that wasn't in place you know
20 years ago when they built, maybe, when Kaanapali was built. Longer than 20 years
ago. Things like access, access to the building, it's not landscaped and, and beautiful, as
beautiful as the Kaanapali buildings are. The fire trucks only can access the backside of
the buildings there. But the ocean side, we have no access to. That's not the case at
North Beach.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. FARM: And you know we have to credit our Fire Prevention Bureau for that. Even though
it's landscaped and looks like grass, there, they put in a, like a... pennastructure ... yeah,
to support the weight of a fire truck with ... with concerns that we have enough room to
tum around. And we were sent down there to test that. So .. .if, if that answered your
question-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeab, and the only reason I'm asking it is because obviously
we have an aging facility, we have needs for additional equipment, you have needs for
additional personnel, and yet what I'm wondering is you know if we don't have that
capability then it's, is it really fair you know in our budget here when the impacts are
being created .. . {laughter} . .. outside of our population right now, is it fair to you guys
to have to make do with what you have and not have people who are creating the impacts
pay? That, that's my basic thing--is you know, I, I gucss what I'll do is I'll ask you guys
privately, but I'm, I'm a real big advocate that when the Department comes to testify,
particularly, not so much before us, but at the Planning Commission .. .if we don't have
it, then how can those things get built? Because if you can't fight a fire, then everybody
there needs to be notified, hey, you're taking your life .. . {laughter} . .. in your hands
because we can't fight the fire, we have no place to house all this equipment. So for me,
I just you know, the message is not getting across, obviously.
MR. FARM: ... Yeah... you, you bringing up like a high-rise issue. And the tanker, the tanker
truck and the new facility would address more ofthe rural areas-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. FARM: --in West Maui. Uh ...no matter what, if there's a fire, you know somewhere in
the high-rise district, we're gonna fight the fire. Believe us. What we're asking for right
now-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. FARM: --is to address a whole, whole different side.

- 91 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofihe County of :\tlaui

March 27, 2008

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, oh, yeah. And I don't dispnte that. Bnt basically what
I'm saying is you that you, you need the staffing in order to do all this anyway. And so
whether it's to fight a rural fire or an urban fire, right now you're over, you're over the
limit, you're just tapped out. And it's unfortunate that you need the equipment both .. .in
both situations and you need the manpower and you don't have it. And, and that's not
your fault, but we'll try and correct it .. .(laughter). .. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. For more information, we're gonna be reviewing the
Department's budget in the coming weeks and we'll ask the proper questions. So thank
you very much. Okay, the next testifier is Joan Warner.
NOTE:

Pause.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... Followed by Representative Angus McKelvey.
AUDIENCE: .. .(laughter). ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Representative McKelvey is the last person to testify this evening.
COUNClLMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . (inaudible) . .. ask for money .. . (laughter). ..
COUNClLMEMBER BALSA: Yeah, we wanna talk to you.
MS. WARNER: ... Hello-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: .. .(laughter) . ..
MS. WARNER: --I'm Joan Warner. And after all the talks about Women Helping Women and
the Fire Department, I'm also here to beg for a sidewalk on Puukolii. I just wauna add a
little bit what's already been said. Probably most of you are already familiar with the
Puukolii Road and realize that there's a berm on one side, on the north side; and on the
south side there's landscaping and a little bit of lawn that you can get onto. And I walk
every morning, every other morning on the ... (inaudible). .. part of the area, up there
walking. And I do walk on Puukolii. And I drive Puukolii. There's just a lot of traffic,
but there are people riding their bicycles to work in the morning or walking in the
morning, there's children on the road, all the access down there to airport beach park,
whatever the new name is, I'm not sure what it is that-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Kahekili.
MS. WARNER: Thank you .. . (laughter). .. Urn ... there's the runners, cyclists, and the women
with their babies. And it's just a, it's an accident waiting to happen because that road has
many blind curves on them. And even though they have the mirrors up on the ... on the
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posts, people don't even look at those mirrors and they, you're right they do get broken.
So there's a blind curve, there's people swerving, myself included--I apologize for
that--to miss the manhole covers and the potholes that .. .(laughter) . .. you know the
potholes keep getting filled up a little bit, but there's a lot of swerving on that road just
because it's so rough to drive.
· .. So it's, it doesn't seem as important as some of these other pressing issues that affect
families, but as soon as somebody gets killed on that road, it's gonna be a family person,
and I would really like to see that get into a budget.
· .. Thank you very much for being here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
· .. Thank you very much for staying with us this late.
MS. WARNER: ... (laughter) . .. Yeah, I know, you have drive home .. . (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .(laughter). .. (end aftape, start 4A) . .. the last person that test. .. to
sign up for test. .. to testify is Representative Angus McKelvey. Angus ...nice to see you
here this late.
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yea, Angus. Yo, Angus.
MR. McKELVEY: I flew back after the Judiciary hearing because I thought it was important to
be here to publicly express my sincerest thanks for coming out to Lahaina, to listen to the
community. Because as you well know, access, which is a big one and the schedules of
everybody, it's impossible to get to Wailuku. So it really means a lot to me personally. I
can say for the rest of the delegation that you guys are out here and staying late, so I
really appreciate it. Real quickly .. .I wanted to be last testifier for two reasons. One,
because this is the public's time. Two, what I have to address are just things that are
happening on the State level that you should maybe keep in mind or some, as far as when
you're deliberating the budget and such. And also to pass on some concerns that have
been given to my office that are County oriented. So hopefully you can help us out on
that. Real quickly, today in the Judiciary Committee we heard the ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, go ahead.
MR. McKELVEY: .. .(laughter). .. I'm sorry ... {inaudible} . .. signal here, Mike knows that
well. We heard the, the HSAC County bill that would extend Act 82 protection to the
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County parks. We went ahead and passed it out of Judiciary Committee today. We
reaffected the effective date. So barring a, we should have agreement from the Senate
and it should go right to the Governor's office, desk finally. So that's-COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Yea!
AUDIENCE: ... {applause} . ..
MR. McKELVEY: That will help put more money into the pockets of the parks and our, and our
rescue personnel. Also, you know, I wauna support everything that has been said here
tonight, particularly our Firefighters. They're gonna have a heck of a job ahead of us
coming this summer with the rains we had this winter. On the State level what we've
done is we put two positions for the State Fire Council, State-funded fully because we
know that the Maui County Fire Chief has been using himself and his staff to address
State Fire Council meetings. And this way, by having these two full positions, the State
Fire Council feels they can carry out all the work that is needed on the Fire Code and
other fire-wise programs and allow the Maui County guys to utilize their staff and budget
for Maui County issues only. So it's in the Senate in front of Ways and Means right now.
Hoping that. . .if you wanna give Roz a call .. .{laughter}. .. it would be great
.. .{laughter} . .. Finally, too, all, Senate Bill 2900 was drafted in concern for the roads in
limbo, which we've heard a lot about tonight. I'm well aware that I believe, I don't know
if the Maui Corporate Counsel has made a ruling, I believe it has according to
Mr. Medeiros when he came to the Talk Story, but Kauai Corporate Counsel made a
similar ruling that if the traffic laws are enforced on a road in limbo, it could basically
means the County is taking legal ownership and also that if the County comes out, as
what they used to do with Ulalena Road and repairs a pothole on a road in limbo, that
basically, too, will be considered legal ownership by the County. I amended Senate
Bill 2900 myself in the Judiciary Committee today so that the County can, if enacted by
the government, Governor can enforce all traffic and safety laws on roads in limbo
without it being deemed an ownership of the County-COUNClLMEMBER BAlSA: Good.
NOTE:

Mechanical difficulties with recording made it difficult or impossible to hear portions of
Representative McKelvey's testimony.

MR. McKELVEY: And the second amendment that I made in the Committee today is also
granted the same the extension to any repair, remediation, or maintenance work that the
County chooses to do on the roads in limbo. So if you wauna go out Puukolii and either
enforce the speed limit or repair a patch hole in the ground--and again, this is a policy
call, I'm not trying to dictate policy ... {inaudible}. .. under State law, be
... {inaudible} . .. So any ... so that concern ... (inaudible). .. Now again, it's up to the
Council ... {inaudible} . .. policy how it's decided, you know, how to handle these
easements. But I just wanted to let you know from the State level ... {inaudible} . ..
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clarify new State law under Chapter 46 that any enforcement of speeding laws or traffic
safety laws on roads in limbo ... {inaudible} . .. will not make the County the legal owner
nor liable for .. .{inaudible} . .. And ... finally, just wauna say two things. One is .. just
got Mala Wharf .. .{inaudible} . .. up to the Governor ... {inaudible} . .. I'm hoping that, I
don't know where it's at, if it's been addressed or not, but ... {inaudible} . .. retention
basins mauka ... (inaudible). .. Kahoma Stream ... {inaudible}. .. maintained that
· .. {inaudible} . .. engineers. I was told by Oceanit it's in the ... {inaudible} . .. Mala
Wharf is completely filled up .. .{inaudible} . .. So ... and ... you now, we've pulled a lot
of strings ... {inaudible} . .. I don't wanna see what happened ... {inaudible} . .. So any
help you guys can give us on that .. .(inaudible). .. And finally, the residents ofWainee
Street ... {inaudible}. .. remediation work and whatnot.
I know I've talked to
Councilmember Medeiros about it. I saw it in the budget request ... {inaudible} . .. I
don't know if that's .. .{inaudible} . .. thank you so much. 1. . .r feel that this will go a
long way towards helping the residents ... {inaudible} . .. long-term solutions. So I thank
you so much for all ofthat. And ... {inaudible} . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. McKELVEY: But I think what that shows ... {inaudible} . .. But. .. the fact that the County
of Maui is so financially viable ... {inaudible} . .. you know ... {inaudible} . .. One final
thing is we've introduced a resolution to support the ordinance ... {inaudible} . ..
timeshare cap. Whether it gets a hearing or not, I don't know. But I can tell you this
· .. {inaudible} . .. all of sudden very interested .. .{inaudible} . .. I was gonna push for
them to give money for more bus .. .(inaudible) . .. for bus stops and buses. But upon
hearing ... (inaudible) . .. what our Fire people have said today ... (inaudible) . .. want
from them for right now ... (inaudible). .. It may ... (inaudible) . .. got a hearing, but I
think it has the desired effect which is to let them know that they need to step up
· . . (inaudible) . .. far more. So anyway, that's just my two cents. Again, thank you so
much for coming .. .(inaudible) . .. community, the
guys over there, Zeke and
Joe .. .(inaudible) . . .(laughter) . .. and everybody, especially MEO and ... (inaudible) . ..
MEO. I've asked the Maui ... (inaudible) . .. So hopefully with that, the community
· .. (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Representative McKelvey, for that wonderful news.
MR. McKELVEY: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We look forward to ...working with you in trying to make more
improvements to the West Maui fire station. Members, any questions for the
Representative? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much for being here, Representative.
question in regards to ... your last statement about the MEO grant-in-aid.
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MR. McKELVEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm really excited that you would do that, but I'm really
concerned about the grant-in-aid that has been languishing ... (cleared throat) . .. since
you folks very generously approved the million dollar--1.3, I believe, for the B.E.S.T.
program.
MR. McKELVEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And we can't get it released. Is there any target?
MR. McKELVEY: No. Just like we ean't get the money released for the Maui Traffic Control
Center, just like we can't get the money released for. . .I mean... we went into special
session. And out of only three bills that were overridden the first time in 25 years, two of
them had to do with MauL One was MEO B.E.S.T. To get the Senate and the House to
come in on a special session and unanimously--except for the ...no offense, the
Republicans--except for the minority votes, there was unanimous support in the House
and Senate for, to override the Governor's veto and to basically get her to release the
money. But the problem is, I've actually, I'll be really blunt at this point, I asked our
own Corporate Counsel about suing the Governor for lacking of releasing the money.
And unfortunately, the legal opinion is it's a political question and the courts will
probably not get involved. But it's been very frustrating to me, personally. It's been
frustrating to our other Maui delegation that that hasn't happened. And I guess the best
thing to do is, I would say at this point is you know resolution from the Council. .. calling
on her to release the money would be very helpful, as well as you know helping us in the
public, even getting people you know who've been in the B.E.S.T. program to write
letters to the Editor and write her and just help us keep the pressure on. But the truth,
Gladys, it's been very frustrating for me as well-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I know.
MR. McKELVEY: --to see this. Because MEO B.E.ST works.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And I think that's my frustration--is you finally have a program
that works ... and instead of trying to help it, it's gonna run out of money very, very soon.
They're already making reductions. And we had some testifiers here tonight. .. and you
can just see what it did for them. And it just breaks my heart that she would do that to us.
MR. McKELVEY: I agree ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MR. McKELVEY: It's break my heart, too. And ... yeah, but we're not giving up on this and if
need be, we'll bring it back in '09 and we'll go into special session again. So ... because
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that's how important it is. I believe not only to me personally, but to the rest of the Maui
Representatives and Senators.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know, if we're ever gonna solve this money problem, we
cannot keep put, building prisons. And the way you stop that is to stop recidivism.
MR. McKELVEY: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you so much.
MR. McKELVEY: Thank you, Councilmember.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. McKELVEY: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh ... Member Medeiros has a quick question for you.
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .. .(laughter) . .. Well, the Committee Chair is pushing me
because the lights go off automatically at 10 o'clock so .. . (laughter) . ..
MR. McKELVEY: .. . (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But thank you, Representative, for your. . .information on
testimony. But on Senate Bill 2900-MR. McKELVEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --with your amendments, it's about roads in limbo.
MR. McKELVEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
... (inaudible). .. discuss tbat and the Legislators
.. .(inaudible). .. meeting up in Haiku ... we talked about old government roads. So does
roads in limbo cover privately owned government-owned roads?
MR. McKELVEY: It covers any road in which the jurisdiction is in question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, that's really good to know. And then on
Kahoma Stream-MR. McKELVEY: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --J have to tell you that Kahoma Stream ... does not have a
retention basin. It's called a debris basin-MR. McKELVEY: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --where it's not, it does not stop soil or small aggregates.
It's designed to stop logs and things like that from going downstream. So on big...water
flows through that area, it takes everything that comes down from the mountain through
the grates, down to the ocean. And there will always be deposits at the ocean from that
stream because it doesn't stop dirt and gravel. .. and small rocks. So just know that, that
it'll always come down to the stream. Then on the Wainee drainage issue ... yes, we still
have money in the budget. But as I told the people in that meeting, a lot of the stuff that
damages and floods Wainee comes from the old Pioneer Mill property. They have a, a
sump there that used to overflow. It went into the basin next to the swimming pool,
overflowed that, went under the highway, State highways, and then flooded that area. So
the mitigation gotta be not only making larger drainages, but we have to do something
about the water that comes from mauka, the State highways.
MR. McKELVEY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just for your information.
MR. McKELVEY: No, exactly. And that's something that, you know on the widening project, I
believe, will help a lot. But I guess my request is that if, if we, we, we can just. . .I
believe this, this money in the budget will help them-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. McKELVEY: --just to bring your attention that, you know, when the money is allocated,
when it gets to the programming level to keep them in mind because they've been calling
my office-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. McKELVEY: --when it rains.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah-MR. McKELVEY: ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and then just lastly, that water that goes to Wainee area
and goes into the ditch system, that reaches Malu-ulu-o-lele ditch, which is not sufficient
enough ... (laughter) . .. to take a larger drainage discharge into that ditch. So we need to
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fix, kind of, the whole system. But, but thank you for the work that you're doing down
there for Maui County.
MR. McKELVEY: And next year is a honding year, so that does give us a little more flexibility
and work with you in perhaps getting some bond money to augment and, and speed up
the, the drainage. But I appreciate everything you're doing. And I know that. . .it's a
tough challenge and you know, we're kinda caught in middle-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. McKELVEY: --in the middle of a supplemental year right now. So-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, mahalo for your work down there on a short-revenue
year.
MR. McKELVEY: .. .(laughter) . .. Thank you, Chair. Thank you, all, again. And a special
thanks to the community and everybody for showing up to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. McKELVEY: I appreciate it. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Angus-AUDIENCE: .. .(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for being here tonight.
AUDIENCE; ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .(cleared throat). .. Is there anyone out there that hasn't testified
this evening that would like to testify at this time?
MR. MICHEL, FROM THE AUDIENCE: .. .(inaudible). ..
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No. No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You cannot ... (inaudible) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You already testified.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none coming up ... to testify--
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.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --this ... r d just like to say thank you very much to the people of the
West Maui side for being here tonight and staying late with us. We appreciate your
presence, we appreciate your testimony. And again, thank you very much ... for being
here. This meeting is now adjourned ... (gavel) . ..
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA, ORR, and MJM)
ACTION:
ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

9:43p.m.
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